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VISION, MISSION & OBJECTIVES

VISION

To be a globally respected organisation, focusing on inclusiveness by providing affordable and quality
healthcare solutions through continuous innovation.

MISSION

To accomplish the Corporate Vision, HLL Lifecare Ltd has outlined following Mission which focus on six
key areas:

Provide quality products and services meeting international standards.
Excellence through continual improvement by adoption of best technologies and practices.

Customer delight and value creation through innovation, R & D, cost management and customer
care.

Focusing on human resource development to meet the needs of challenging business environment.

Be a socially committed corporate by maintaining highest standards of corporate governance and
corporate social responsibility.

Committed to the well-being of mother earth and future generations through green initiatives and
promotion of sustainable development.

OBJECTIVES

The company will strive to fulfill its vision/mission by

Annual Report 2018-2019

Attaining rapid growth and global levels of operations with high quality cost competitiveness and be
among the top three players in each main product category.

Create a culture of continuous innovation through R& D initiatives.
Strive to be the employer of choice in India with employee satisfaction levels of over 90%.

Be recognized as the leading social organization in the field of Reproductive and Women’s
Healthcare with commitment to the society - a partner of choice for implementing all government
and multi-lateral initiatives in these segments.

Focussing on capacity building, skill development and infrastructural development for the benefit
of the marginalized and under privileged sections for their empowerment and inclusion in the
economic mainstream.

To place emphasis on environmental friendly activities that brings out conservation of resources
and waste management leading to top sustainable development.
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QUALITY POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to:

Consistently provide our customers with affordable Healthcare solutions of the highest possible
level of quality.

Continually improve our processes, products and services, adopt best technologies and practices
and meet national / international regulatory requirements at all times.

Focus on innovation, R&D, cost management and deliver customer value nationally and globally,
conforming to the needs of our customers.

Be an organization that meets highest standards in Corporate Governance and Corporate Social
responsibility.

SHE POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to protect environment, eliminate occupational hazards and
maintain a healthy and safe work place by

Preventing any adverse impact to the environment and complying with applicable legal and other
requirements.

Adopting safe operating practices, with employee training and their involvement.

Improving the environmental quality by minimizing waste & emission, reusing & recycling, reducing
the use of natural resources.

Striving for a global and consistent approach that builds on local management system & best
practices and to achieve sustainable performance.

Periodic review of safety, health and environment management system.

LAB QUALITY POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to:

Ensure reliable, consistent, impartial and traceable test results by using test methods complying
with national / international standards and by following good professional practices.

Ensure that all personnel involved in the testing operations are competent and familiar with the
policies and procedures of the management system conforming to ISO/IEC 17025: 2017 and
implement the same in their work.

Continually improve the effectiveness of the management system.

ENERGY POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to buying and using energy in the most cost effective, efficient
and environmentally responsible way through:

Regularly reviewing the energy efficiency performance and adopt relevant improvement;

Using energy efficiency as one of the key criteria within procurement process and encourage usage
of renewable energy source;

Compliance of applicable legal and other requirements related to energy use, consumption &
efficiency;

Ensuring promotion of awareness about the need for diligent consumption and conservation of
energy among the employees and other stakeholders.

Annual Report 2018-2019 11
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CHAIRMAN’S SPEECH

Dear Members,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, it is an honour and privilege for me to extend a very
warm welcome to each one of you to the 53rd Annual General Meeting of your Company. The Annual
Report, including the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 are already with
you and with your kind permission, | take them as read.

During the financial year 2018-19 your Company has turned around and has posted a profit after tax of
INR 18.46 Cr. Revenue from operations for the year 2018-19 is INR 1444.36 Cr, as against INR 1075.38 in
2017-18, recording a growth of 34%. Your Company has achieved “Very Good” performance rating under
MoU signed between HLL and Government of India.

HLL has five (5) subsidiary companies and one (1) Joint Venture Company. Among these subsidiaries,
HLL Infra Tech Services Limited [HITES] has done well during the financial year 2018-19 by recording
turnover INR 190.68 Cr. and Profit Before Tax INR 30.86 Cr. The Joint Venture Company — LifeSpring
Hospitals Private Limited [LSH] has earned revenue of INR 19.43 Cr. and Profit Before Tax of INR 0.97 Cr.
Other subsidiaries - HLL Biotech Limited [HBL], HLL Medipark Limited [HML] and HLL Mother & Childcare
Hospitals Limited [HMCCHL are yet to start commercial operations.

Under the backdrop, | share with you some of the achievements of your Company during the year 2018-
19. The NHM Maharashtra project is the largest and prestigious project undertaken and implemented by
HLL. Within a period of one year, we could served around ONE crore customers, 93 labs were established
in a fast track mode. A total of 2.5 crore tests have been conducted till date in this project with atleast
70,000 tests per day.

AMRIT retail pharmacy, which opened its first outlet on 15th November 2015 at AIIMS, New Delhi campus
as on 15th September, 2019 nearly 156.95 lakhs patients have benefitted from AMRIT Pharmacies. The
value of drugs dispensed at MRP is INR 1581.80 Cr. and the patients have benefitted with a savings of
INR 813.17 Cr. from AMRIT stores thereby reducing their out of pocket expenditure. Presently there are
167 AMRIT Pharmacies spread across 24 States/Union Territories.

To conclude, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to convey my sincere thanks and
acknowledgment for the co-operation and support extended by various departments of Government of
India, particularly by the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare. | take this opportunity to specially thank
Ministry of Health & Family Welfare for her support and valuable guidance. | would also like to thank my

Annual Report 2018-2019 13
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colleagues on the Board for their valuable guidance and contribution in steering the Company.

Your Company had substantially complied with Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by Department
of Public Enterprises.

| thank all present here once again for having attended today’s Annual General Meeting.
| now move the Agenda items as per notice for your consideration and approval.

K Beji George IRTS
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 08419099

Date : 30.09.2019

Place : New Delhi
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No. HLL/CS/III-152(h)/19 23 September, 2019

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 53 Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of HLL Lifecare Ltd.
will be held on Monday the 30" September, 2019, at 3.00 P.M at the Committee Room, Nirman Bhavan,
Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

L.

To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company (including audited
standalone & consolidated statements) for the year ended 315t March 2019 along with the Report of
the Directors and Statutory Auditors together with comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General
of India (C&AG) thereon.

To authorize the Board of Directors to fix remuneration payable to the Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the year 2019-20.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification as an
ordinary resolution:

“‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the requirement of Section 142 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to fix the remuneration to
the Statutory Auditors, appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the year
2019-20".

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Ratification of Cost Auditor’s remuneration for the financial year 2019-20

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification as an
ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the Company hereby fix remuneration
of Rs. 4,00,000/- plus applicable Goods and Services Tax and reimbursement of travelling & out
of pocket expenses at actuals payable to M/s. R J Goel & Co., Cost Accountants, 31, Community
Centre, 2 Floor, Ashok Vihar, Phase -1, New Delhi - 110052 Firm Registration No.000026, who
were appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of
the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 31t March 2020.

By the order of the Board
Jaikrishnan AR

Company Secretary

Place: Thiruvananthapuram
Date: 23.9.2019
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Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and on a poll to vote instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of the
Company. Proxies, in order to be valid and effective, must be lodged with the registered office of
the company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2. Pursuant to Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors of a Government
Company are appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG). In terms of
Section 142(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the remuneration of auditors has to be fixed by the
company in the annual general meeting or in such manner as the company in annual general
meeting may determine. C&AG has vide letter No. CA/V/COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT,
HLATEX(1)/27 dated 31st July, 2019 appointed M/s. K Varghese & Co., Chartered Accountants,
Trivandrum, Kerala as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year 2019-20. Accordingly,
necessary resolution has been placed before the Members for authorising the Board of directors
to fix up the remuneration to the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2019-20.

3. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies, Act, 2013 with Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules 2014, setting out the material facts in respect of Special
Business is annexed.

To

1.  All Shareholders

2, All Directors

3. Statutory Auditors

4. Secretarial Auditors
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Explanatory Statement setting out material facts
and reasons for the proposed Special Business is given below.

Item No: 3

The Company is directed, under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 to have the audit of its cost records conducted by a Cost Accountant in
practice. The Board of Directors of your Company in their 269" Board meeting held on 5" September,
2019approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s. R J Goel & Co., Cost Accountants, 31, Community
Centre, 2" Floor, Ashok Vihar, Phase -1, New Delhi - 110052 with Firm Registration No.000026 for the
financial year ending March 31, 2020. In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a)(ii) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of
the members is sought for passing ordinary resolution for ratification of the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2020.

The Board recommends the aforesaid resolution for your approval.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or
interested in the aforesaid ordinary resolution.

By order of the Board
Jaikrishnan AR
Company Secretary
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No. HLL/CS/III-152(h)/19 9" October, 2019

NOTICE OF THE ADJOURNED ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 53 Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of HLL Lifecare Ltd.
adjourned sine die from 30" September, 2019 will be held on Thursday the 17" October, 2019 at 10.30
A.M at Nirman Bhavan, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended 31st March 2019 along with the Report of the Directors and Statutory Auditors together with
comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) on Consolidated accounts thereon
and reply of the management thereto.

By the order of the Board

Jaikrishnan AR
Company Secretary

Place: Thiruvananthapuram
Date: 9.10.2019

Note regarding Adjourned Annual General Meeting:

1. The audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 could not be
considered by the members at the 53 Annual General Meeting originally held on September 30, 2019,
since the comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) on the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements in terms of the provisions of Section 143(6) of Companies Act, 2013 were not
received.
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At the said meeting, after considering all other agenda items, the members resolved to adjourn the
meeting sine die to be reconvened after receipt of the comments of the C&AG. The comments of the
C&AG on the audited consolidated Financial Statements have since been received and a copy of the
same is enclosed with this notice. Now the adjourned 53" Annual General Meeting meeting is being
re-convened to consider only the Agenda Item regarding consideration of the audited Consolidated
Financial Statement, containing Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, Consolidated
Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement of the Company, for the year ended March 31 2019
together with the Report of the Board and auditors along with the Comments of the Auditors and
Comptroller & Auditor General of India thereon and reply of the management thereto. The Annual
Report for the year containing the Standalone & Consolidated Audited Financial Statement and other
statutory annexure required to be laid before the members at the Annual General Meeting (except
the comments of the C&AG on the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements, which is being sent
now), have already been sent to the members and others entitled to receive the same along with the
notice of the 53 Annual General Meeting dated 23 September, 2019.

In terms of the provisions of Standard No. 15.2 of ‘Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-
2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a fresh notice is being given for this
adjourned meeting since the meeting was adjourned sine die.

Other Notes:

To

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and on a poll to vote instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of the
Company. Proxies, in order to be valid and effective, must be lodged with the registered office of
the company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

All Shareholders
All Directors
Statutory Auditors

Secretarial Auditors
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l. DIRECTOR’S REPORT (2018-19)

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company'’s financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2019 is summarised below:

(% in lacs)
el Fra e Standalone Consolidated

2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18
Revenue from operations 1,44,436.65 1,07,538.27 1,68,211.93 1,21,754 .07
Other Income 2,731.94 1,316.49 1,423.46 557.68
Total Income 1,47,168.59 1,08,854.76 1,69,635.39 1,22,311.75
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 1,536.07 (6,486.94) (1,296.13) (8,770.08)
Tax Expenses (310.77) 471.40 1,077.14 1,767.17
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 1,846.84 (6,958.34) (2,373.27) (10,537.25)

2. SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share capital of the Company as on 31 March, 2019 stood at ¥ 300.00 Cr. as the same
of previous year and the issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital as on 31 March, 2019 was
¥ 290.42 Cr. without any change.

3. PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY VIS-A-VIS MOU TARGETS

Your Company’s performance has been rated as “Fair” in terms of MoU signed with the Government of
India for the year 2017-18. A statement showing performance of the Company vis-a-vis MoU target for the
financial year 2018-19 is enclosed as Annexure | which forms part of this report.

4. DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company did not accept any deposits within the meaning of provisions
of Chapter V - Acceptance of Deposits by Companies of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

5. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, your Company has not given guarantee, not given any loans or guarantees
covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the investments
made by Company are given in the notes to the financial statements.

6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All the Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length
basis and were in ordinary course of business. There were no materially significant transactions with
Related Parties during the financial year 2018-19 which were in conflict with the interest of the Company.
Suitable disclosures as required under INDAS-24 have been made in Note No.2.34 of the Notes to the
Financial Statements.
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Particulars of contract/arrangements/transactions made with related parties, pursuant to Section 188(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 in the prescribed form AOC-2 is appended as Annexure Il which forms part
of this report.

7. SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURE

As on March 31, 2019, your Company has five subsidiary companies and one joint venture Company.
Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, a statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries and joint
venture companies in Form AOC-1 is attached to the financial statements. The summary of performance
of the subsidiary and joint venture companies is provided below:

7.1 HLL Biotech Limited [HBL]

HLL Biotech Limited (HBL), the wholly owned subsidiary company has completed its seventh year of
incorporation on 12th March 2019. The authorized share capital of the Company as on 31tMarch, 2019
stood at ¥ 285.00 crores which is same as the previous year and the issued, subscribed and paid up equity
share capital as on 31stMarch 2019 stands at % 274.89 crores.

HBL successfully obtained license to manufacture drugs for purposes of examination, test or analysis
(Form 29)for Bacillus Calmette—Guérin (BCG) vaccine, Japanese Encephalitis (JE) vaccine and Rabies
vaccine on 17th December 2018 enabling the company to produce these vaccine products upto Pre-
Clinical Toxicology (PCT) evaluation and approval. HBL also obtained the following approvals from Tamil
Nadu Pollution Control Board:

1. Consentfor Operation of the plant and discharge of emissions under Section 21 of the Air (Prevention
and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 as amended in 1987 (Central Act 14 of 1981).

2. Consent for Operation of the plant and discharge of sewage and/or trade effluent under Section 25
of the Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 as amended in 1988 (Central Act 6 of
1974).

HVAC, water systems, process equipment and lab equipment validation and qualification activities (1Q,
0Q & PQ) related to ready-to-fill bulk of Liquid Pentavalent Vaccine (LPV) were accomplished. As pre-
commissioning to vaccine filling, 3 lots of media fill runs were carried out and successfully completed
ensuring filling line readiness and regulatory compliance.

Immunogenicity studies on animal models for developmental batches of Japanese Encephalitis (JE)
and Haemophilus influenza Type B (HiB) vaccine were carried out in-house after obtaining the requisite
Institutional Animal Ethics Committee (IAEC) approval. The results demonstrated satisfactory efficacy for
these batches for further progression in manufacturing pilot batches.

A Memorandum of Understanding between RAZI Vaccine & Serum Research Institute, Iran and HBL was
signed off for the bulk supply and technology transfer of MR vaccine. A proposal for inclusion of Rota viral
vaccine in HBL product mix was submitted to MoHFW on 30thNovember 2018. HBL entered into an NDA
with Bharat Biotech International Limited for supply of Rota viral vaccine bulk to undertake formulation,
filling and packaging at Integrated Vaccine Complex (IVC) in the HBL premises.

During the financial year, HBL marketing team developed a new social marketing business model wherein
we collaborated with Chennai Petroleum Corporation Limited (CPCL) and other public limited companies
to conduct Hepatitis B awareness and immunization program as part of their corporate social responsibility
(CSR) activities. This is the first of its kind business model in the industry. In last one year, around 5000
persons have benefited from these programs.
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7.2 Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Limited [GAPL]

The authorized and paid up share capital of GAPL is Rs.25.00 Cr. and Rs.19.02 Cr. respectively without
any change as on 31st March 2019. The shareholding of HLL Lifecare Limited (holding company) in GAPL
is 74% and balance 26% is held by EDC Limited.

During the year under review, the Revenue from operations dropped by 10.92% as compared with the
previous year.

Automated new tablets manufacturing line 2019-2021

GAPL proposes to set up a new fully automatic tablet manufacturing facility with WHO GMP certification
for manufacture of general tablets. The estimated capacity of the new tablet manufacturing line could be
500 million tablets per annum on single shift basis. This facility shall cater to the requirement of institutional
customers with bulk quantity requirements in short span of time. Estimated investment of ¥ 12.50 Crores
and additional turnover of 223.00 Crores w.e.f 2021-22 onwards. WHO-GMP certification is a mandatory
requirement for export of the drugs. Once the certification is obtained, GAPL can supply to the unregulated
markets in Asian and African countries.

Cephalosporin project 2020-22

As a part of larger plan to enhance production capacity and expand product range it is also planned to
setup state-of- the-art Cephalosporin range of formulation manufacturing facility in the category of Tablets
and capsules. Further a new DPP line would be part of the facility with WHO GMP Compliance as the
existing facility is obsolete.

The new facility will be designed to meet current international GMP compliance requirements with the
intension to explore the possibility of formulation exports to non-regulated as well as regulated markets.

The investment for the facility would be around z 38 Crores. 1st year volume 18.2 million tablets and 7
million Capsules with additional revenue of ¥12.76 Crores in 2022-23 is estimated.

Upgrading existing facility

It is also planned to upgrade the Quality Control Laboratory to meet current regulatory compliances and
strengthen in-house sample testing capabilities.

In order to meet the current GMP Guidelines and to enhance the shift productivity, it is planned to replace
the old machines at Allopathic manufacturing facility in phased manner.

ISO certification

GAPL has obtained ISO 9001:2015 certification for its manufacturing facility at Tuem Pernem Goa during
August 2018.

7.3 HLL Infra Tech Services Limited [HITES]

HITES was incorporated on 3rd April 2014 as a wholly owned subsidiary of HLL Lifecare Limited to carry on
the business of providing services viz., Infrastructure Development, Facilities Management, Procurement
Consultancy and allied services, foreseeing the enormous scope of business in these segments.

During the year under review, HITES achieved growth in Turnover and Profit, besides achieving many
milestones and sealing new heights. The Turnover of the Company increased to Rs.190.68 Crores as
against last year’s Turnover of Rs. 86.32 Crores. The profit also increased to Rs.30.86 Crores as against
the previous year profit of Rs.11.25 Crores.
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Expansion of healthcare sector is one of the most inspiring success stories of modern era. Development
of health care sector always plays a key role in building the nation and indeed emerged as one of the
leading sector of the Indian economy. Taking advantage of this, HITES utilized the opportunities and
shown remarkable improvement in business development.

HITES has been appointed as PSA for procurement of medical equipment under PMSSY Phase IV &V.

Government of MP has also appointed HITES as its procurement consultant. In the year 2018, West
Bengal Medical Supplies Corporation Limited (WBMSCL) has appointed HITES for maintenance of
Medical Equipment in West Bengal.

HITES has also bagged 3 New AIIMS construction at Gorakhpur, Bhatinda and Guwahati.

HITES has also started providing service to private sector clients. HITES entered into an agreement with
HMEL under which HITES Company will render consultancy support to establish 70 bedded hospital.

7.4 HLL Medipark Limited [HML]

HLL Medipark Ltd was incorporated on 20" Dec 2016, as a wholly owned subsidiary of HLL Lifecare Ltd,
for the implementation of Medipark in Chengalpattu in Tamil Nadu. Medipark is envisaged as an exclusive
industrial cluster with the state-of-the art infrastructure and integrated eco system for the manufacture
of medical devices and equipments along with knowledge management infrastructure in a sprawling
330 acres of land. The Medipark will be a one-stop facility for manufacturing units and would stimulate
innovation and R&D, develop new technologies, prototyping and commercialization, quality assurances
through its accredited laboratory & calibration centres and become a hub for the sector in the country.
The project is aimed to strengthen the “Make in India” drive of the Government thereby reducing the
dependence on imports and create a strong base for the growth of indigenous manufacturing.

The authorized and paid-up share capital of HML as on 31t March 2019 is Rs13 Cr and Rs 2.10 Cr
respectively.

The statutory approvals are received for the commencement of construction activities. However, the
project could not be commenced due to difficulty in raising financial resources for the project.

Dept of Commerce, GOl accorded approval for the grant support of Rs 9.56 Cr for the EMI/EMC laboratory
and first installment of Rs 4.78 Cr was already released.

MOHFW, GOl has advised GoTN to take over the management control of the company and the same is
in initial process now.

7.5 HLL Mother & Child Care Hospitals Limited [HMCCHL]

In December 2016, Director General (Medical & Health Services), Government of Uttar Pradesh [GoUP]
had issued a tender notification inviting proposals for Operationalization of 100 bedded Mother & Child
Hospital (MCH) wings at 20 district hospitals in Uttar Pradesh (the project). The project has to be executed
on EFOMT (Equip, Finance, Operate, Maintain and Transfer) basis, wherein the successful bidder has
to finance, equip and operate the MCH wings of District hospitals for a period of 10 years. The tender
notification inter alia has stipulated that the successful bidder has to register a Special Purpose Vehicle
[SPV] under the Companies Act, 2013 to implement the project. HLL was selected as the successful and
L1 bidder and issued Letter of Award to HLL Lifecare Ltd. [HLL] on 27th March 2017 for Operationalization
of 20 MCHWSs on EFOMT basis. HLL had registered the SPV HLL Mother and Child Care Hospitals Ltd
[HMCCHL] on 1st August 2017.

The authorized and paid-up share capital of HMCCHL as on 31t March 2019 is Rs.10 lakh each.

The company was formed as a SPV to implement the Mother & Child Care Hospitals project and could not
serve the objective for which the SPV was set up. Considering the fact that maintaining a shell company
will necessitate incurring administrative cost and legal compliance cost among other incidental costs, the
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Board of Directors of HMCCHL decided to merge HMCCHL with HLL. Accordingly, a detailed proposal for
merger was considered and approved by the Board of Directors of HMCCHL and HLL.

7.6 Life Spring Hospitals (P) Limited [LSH]

Rebounding from the adverse policy situation (due to launch of cash incentive scheme for women delivering
in public hospitals by Government of Telangana) as reported last year, the revenue has increased from Rs.
1774.55 lakh to Rs.1987.60 lakh resulting in 12% increase and could achieve 5% return on investment.
LSH has earned a record profit of Rs.1.01 crore, and was profitable in all months of the financial year. After
a long time, it has become debt free.

The authorized and paid-up share capital of LSH as on 31stMarch 2019 is Rs.20.00 Cr and Rs.17.16 Cr
respectively.

These results were possible by continuing focus on the following aspects of the business:

» Engaging past customers in spreading the word. The outreach workers are now actively guiding the
newly identified customers to the past customers from the area to provide an active reference as
well as provide an opportunity to the past customers to tell about their experience to others in the
community. This move ensured that the company’s name is spread in the community by more persons.

+ Adapting the approach of maximizing the sale to a customer. Company personnel now try to intercept
the customer at each stage and motivate them to avail the follow up services at your company. This
has resulted an increase of 13 % in the total services sold.

« By regularly following up with the customers for their ensuing visits and increasing the new persons
visiting the hospital, the company could increase the ‘(unique) number of customers seen in the
hospitals per month’ by 6%.

» Spreading the word of ‘care for the woman’ as opposed to ‘care of pregnant women’ earlier. Till last
year, the women restricted themselves mostly to the deliveries. Positioning LifeSpring Hospitals as
‘care for the woman’ resulted in the women approaching hospital for a variety of their health needs,
thus increasing the ‘percentage of women admitted into the hospital for reasons other than deliveries’
by 5%. This metric is now 35%.

By engaging other vendors successfully, the company provided ultrasonography services in nine of its
eleven hospitals, without the need for further capital investment to provide these services.

LSH continued the practice of implementing health camps on behalf of Brandix SEZ (as part of their CSR
activity).

Overall, LSH helped 60,000 women to deliver their babies since inception. On the outcomes front, the
company continued on the path to growth with respect to average number of prenatal visits by pregnant
women who have delivered at LSH which is 9.45 at the close of the year.

8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has adopted “Ind As” with effect from 1st April 2016. The Financial Statements in
accordance with the Ind As on Consolidated Financial Statements is provided in the Annual Report. The
Annual Accounts of the Subsidiary Companies, along with related information are available for inspection
at the Registered Office of the Company, and also at the registered offices of the respective subsidiary
companies during working hours.

9. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

Your Company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls, commensurate with the nature of
its business, size, scale and complexity of operations which ensures that all transactions are approved
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and authorized as per Delegation of Powers (DOP), recorded and reported correctly, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records in SAP driven environment, timely preparation of reliable financial
statements are maintained and assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized
use or disposition. The Company, being a Public Sector Enterprise, is subject to Comptroller and Auditor
General (CAG) audit also. Significant audit observations and follow-up actions thereon are reported to the
Audit Committee.

10.VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Your Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy, to provide a formal mechanism
to the Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate
safeguards against victimization of employees who avail the mechanism and also provides for direct
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been
denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and that no complaints were received during the
year in this regard. The Whistle Blower Policy is placed in the website of the company.

11.RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has adopted a robust Risk Management Policy approved by the Board of Directors and
established an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) system that engages with all the business verticals
for risk assessment and ensures that the risk mitigation plans are in place.

12.SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY

There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting
the going concern status and operations of the Company.

13.MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and on the date of this
report. However, the following matters are reported.

13.1 Strategic Disinvestment of HLL Lifecare Limited

The Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs (CCEA), Government of India, in its meeting held on 1st
November 2017 had granted ‘in-principle’ approval for hiving off the Vaccine venture and Medipark project
of HLL Lifecare Limited [HLL] as separate SPVs within a period of three months and thereafter sale of
100% of Government’s equity in HLL via a two-stage auction process.

The Transaction Advisor appointed by the Government of India in the matter of proposed Disinvestment
of HLL has prepared the Preliminary Investor Memorandum [PIM] based on the data, documents and
information provided by HLL. HLL Board of directors in its meeting held on 3™ June 2019 took cognizance
of the contents of the PIM. The PIM was then shared with the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare for
information.

13.2 Demerger of HLL Biotech Limited and HLL Medipark Limited from HLL Lifecare Limited

The Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs [CCEA], Government of India, in its meeting held on 1st
November 2017 has granted ‘in-principle’ approval for hiving off the Vaccine venture and Medipark
project of HLL Lifecare Ltd. [HLL] as separate Special Purpose Vehicles and thereafter sale of 100% of
Government’s equity in HLL via a two-stage auction process. The Vaccine Venture and Medipark project
is presently pursued by HLL through its wholly owned subsidiary companies namely; HLL Biotech Ltd. and
HLL Medipark Ltd.

Annual Report 2018-2019 37



i 4

-~

K pauEUe Sremhar s
TR oy A H R o SRR

1 ®eRT, 2019 T W@ 3R URER HedoT Herd (TH3NUeuEhsieery), TRd TSR = 0 U5 U =, 1-45013/44/2017
- TS gRT THEueT 3R TIUAU o foera & feTu s S s e f5a & @ik ueh vt fafr o e s ue
gl

W 3R INER HeduT HAeid, YR @R §RT §T 70 9T Hom ud 59 &= | T gu, 20 wweRt 2019 &t
ST 267 o SIS 9% H TGN % o3k Heel § TaUoited ¥ THeiuel 3 TEUHU & oo & fog y&ae ®
faam 3R e foar 2

ME % AT F FER W HTE I 7 57 2019 F HrORe FH TR (THET) F e % o smeeT wew
£ T AR THET & forEee €

14 f2vet & SoReTae faeror
ST srfufram, 2013 =t gRT 134 1 3T-9RT (3) % T (M) F e7Uemsii & IR, R gfez v € T
%) AIMTH @l AR H, STGE AT HHHR 6 Uo7 T § SR 3TY s Hecaqul foreer et foRar e §

W) IEH U oREr it s 9 AT § a1 GETd 99 SR TG AT T SR R fadet ud meeR o ua
3 FAIT T A1 fort 3 o 37 | U= o HTHE 6l S0 1 gfee Wel Ud AT {qeror 3R 39 emafy & forw ot
% AT 3 T |

M) U T ARGUTTAT T GREIT T 3R e TAT 31T AT i e TS TAT I ity sho=T sifafTam, 2013
% WEYHT & STER T Ol o STeREl & SFRETUT Shield JradT i 3R 3fad 3R gaie & far & |

H) 3% ATHHRT HRISTN F1eT o ER T a1ies oier 9ar f6ar 81

) |l UG FIAT o WEHHT o ST YR H o 7T SBH Srad JUTelt TaR i § 3R T JUTel 9En § SR
T T F JECH HRA E |

15. wd=at &1 faewor

AT % FHARET FRT G § S RATHF A Sl 1 geRon, oA HEm 2014 (SR wige % Fge 3R
TRSfEe) % MR W o &l & {6 geiemds a9 o fuiia @ @ i aisfee smeor w9t Hur & g o
HEIRT T £ |

16.anfiyer faaroft & Igor

Sy s, 2013 %1 ary 134 3 37 4R7 3(3) F o St 3 Frm, 2014 3 Freml2 (e T o) % SER
T &t Rue & ergea [ & w0 § ug it 3t w9 § 31 o1, 2018 7 i a1feh [geRon & 3§07 Toir=T fohal S € |

17. sEmadies
17.1. witatus SEmadiers

TETRIET RUIE | 1= U Yaetih/ ey 39 X W [Tt o a1 uisd d; T € 37T o attatem, 2013 =t
uRT 134 % aef erTedt g feoolt o ferw et @ € |

17.2 Hiusit dEmaiemht &t feufrat

ST sttt 2013 it 4wy 143(6) % et o 2018-19 & foq shut % @t W Hustt o femfrt 3R $6 W e 6
IR 79 [ 7 ergee IV & w9 7 Fore fov o £

38 s aie 2018-2019




4 ; _
i # — HLL Lifecare Limited
] Innovating for Healthy Generations NN

On 1stFebruary, 2019 the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare [MoHFW], Government of India vide its letter
F.No.A-45013/44/2017 — HPE has directed HLL to formulate schemes for Demerger of HBL & HML and
submit the same to the Ministry at an early date.

Taking into consideration the CCEA decision and direction given by the MoHFW, Government of India,
the Board of Directors of HLL in its 267" Board meeting held on 20" February, 2019 has considered and
approved the proposal for the Demerger of HBL & HML from HLL.

Based on the Board approval the Company has submitted application for Demerger to Ministry of Corporate
Affairs [MCA] on 7th June, 2019. The application is under consideration with the MCA.

14.DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013,
your Directors confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and
that no material departures have been made from the same;

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profits of the Company for that period;

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

15.PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Information regarding particulars of employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limit specified under
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable as
none of the employees of the Company has drawn remuneration in excess of the stipulated limit, during
the year under review.

16.EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 an extract of the Annual Return as at March 31, 2018 in
form MGT 9 is appended as Annexure Il to the Board’s Report.

17.AUDITORS
17.1 Statutory Auditors

The observations/qualifications made in the Auditors’ Report read together with relevant notes thereon
are self-explanatory and hence, do not call for any further comments under Section 134 of the Companies
Act,2013.

17.2 Comments of CAG Auditors

The comments of CAG under Section 143 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the accounts of the Company
for the year 2018-19 and replies of the management thereto are appended as Annexure IV to this report.
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17.3 Cost Auditors

HLL had initially appointed M/s. Jugal K Puri & Associates, Cost Accountants, New Gurgaon as Cost
Auditors for the financial year 2018-19 to conduct cost audit of the accounts maintained by the Company
in respect of the various products prescribed under Companies (Cost Records &Audit Rules), 2014.
However, due to dissolution of M/S Jugal K. Puri & Associates in December 2019, a casual vacancy arose
and HLL had appointed M/S R.J Goel & Co. as Cost Auditors to fill the casual Vacancy for the cost audit for
the year 2018-19 with the approval of the Board. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Members are requested to consider the ratification
of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors.

17.4 Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed M/s. BVR &
Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company
for the year ended 31t March, 2019. The Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR3 forms part of the
Annual Report as Annexure V to the Board’s Report. The Secretarial Audit Report contains an observation
with regard to appointment of Independent Director of the Company. The management response for the
observation is given below.

Observation Management response

During the period under review the company has | HLL being a Government Undertaking, the
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, | appointment/nomination of all the Directors including
Regulations, guidelines, standards etc except the | Independent Directors are done by the Ministry of
following: Health & Family Welfare. Till 17" July, 2018 HLL
had one (1) Independent Director on the Board. HLL
Whereas in terms of provisions of Section 149(4) | has informed vacancies of Independent Directors
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies | to the Ministry on timely manner and requested
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, | the Ministry to appoint Independent Directors to
2014 the Company is required to appoint Independent | ensure the compliance of Companies Act. However,
Director which is yet to comply. Hence as per the | Ministry is yet to appoint Independent Directors.
provisions of Section 177 (1) and 135 of the Companies | Due to non-availability of Independent Directors, the
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of | Audit Committee & CSR Committee could not be re-
Board and its powers) Rules, 2014 and Companies | constituted. As and when the Independent Directors
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 the | are appointed by the Ministry we will reconstitute the
Audit Committee and CSR Committee are required to | committees.

be reconstituted with Independent Director and is yet
to comply.

18. PROCUREMENT OF GOODS FROM MSMEs

During the year 2018-19, the Company has procured goods of value of Rs.4,083 lakhs from Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) out of the total procurement of Rs.15,577 lakhs which is 26.21%
against the target of 25%. The Company has also conducted 21 Vendor Development Programmes.

19.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNICAL ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS/
OUTGO

The particulars regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings
and Outgo, as prescribed under sub-section 3 (m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are given as Annexure-A, which forms part of this report.

20.CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY

HLL has been an early adopter of CSR initiatives. HLL implements CSR programmes directly and through
its implementing agencies such as Hindustan Latex Family Planning and Promotion Trust [HLFPPT] and
HLL Pratheeksha Charitable Society. As per sub-section 5 of Section 135 every Company for which the
provisions of CSR is applicable shall spend at least 2% of the average net profit of the Company made
during the three immediately preceeding financial years. The average net profit of three immediately
preceeding financial year is given below:
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Net profit as per Section 198 of
Year the Companies Act, 2013 (Rs.
In lakhs)

2015-16 3,803.04
2016-17 (4,059.51)
2017-18 (6,486.94)
Total (6,743.41)
Average of the three years (2,247.46)

From the above it can be seen that the average of last three years is net loss. Therefore, the provisions
regarding CSR is not applicable for HLL during the financial year 2018-19.

21.CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of good corporate governance and has
taken adequate steps to adhere to all stipulations laid down in DPE O.M. No. 18(8)/2005-GM dated 14-
05-2010 issued by Department of Public Enterprises. The Company has obtained a Certificate from the
Practicing Company Secretaries M/s. BVR & Associates, LLP confirming compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance. Forming part of this report as Annexure VI.

22.MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review is presented in a separate section
forming part of this report.

23.BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The following changes took place on the Board of the Company:
23.1 Cessation

The following persons have ceased as Directors from the Company:

e On 30" November, 2018 Dr R K Vats, IAS ceased as Chairman & Managing Director and on 2™
April, 2019, ceased as Government Nominee Director.

e On 11" January, 2019 Smt Vijaya Srivastava, IAS, Special Secretary & F.A in the Ministry has
ceased as Government Nominee Director.

e On 27" March, 2019 Shri. Arun Singhal, IAS, ceased as Chairman & Managing Director.

e On 2" April, 2019 Ms. Preeti Pant, ICAS, Joint Secretary & F.A in the Ministry has ceased as
Government Nominee Director.

The Board of Directors places on record its deep appreciation for the valuable guidance extended by the
above Directors during their association with the Company.

23.2 Appointment
e On 30" November, 2018 Shri Arun Singhal, IAS was appointed as Chairman & Managing Director.
e On 11" January, 2019 Dr R K Vats IAS was appointed as Government Nominee Director.

e On 27" March, 2019 Shri K Beji George, IRTS was appointed as Chairman & Managing Director.
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e On 2" April, 2019 Dr Mandeep K Bhandari, IAS, Joint Secretary in the Ministry was appointed as
Government Nominee Director.

e On 2" April, 2019 Dr Dharmendra S Gangwar, IAS, Additional Secretary & FA in the Ministry was
appointed as Government Nominee Director.

23.3 Woman Director

In terms of the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company shall have at least
one Woman Director on the Board. During the year under review, your Company had Dr. Geeta Sharma,
Director (Finance) as woman Director on the Board of the Company.

23.4 Committees of the Board

Your Company has several committees which have been established as a part of the best corporate
governance practices and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable
laws and statutes. There have been no situations where the Board has not accepted any recommendation
of the Audit Committee. The Company has following Committees of the Board:

1. Audit Committee
Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

> 0D

Strategy Formulation & Investment Committee

A detailed note with respect to the compositions, powers, roles, terms of reference, etc. of relevant
committees are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance section which forms part of this Annual
Report.

23.5 Declaration from Independent Directors

During the financial year 2018-19 there were no Independent Directors on the Board of HLL. However,
HLL has informed the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare about the vacancies of Independent Directors
on a timely manner.

23.6 Board Meetings held during the year

During the year, five meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The maximum interval between any two
meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the meetings
are furnished in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Report.

24.POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT
WORKPLACE

Company has constituted compliance committee as per the provisions of the Sexual Harassment
at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 — an Act to provide protection against
sexual harassment of women at workplace and for the prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual
harassment. Your Company firmly believes that sexual harassment results in violation of the fundamental
rights of woman to equality under articles 14 and 15 of the Constitution of India and the right to life and live
with dignity under article 210f the constitution and the right to practice any profession or to carry on any
occupation, trade or business which includes a right to safe environment free from Sexual Harassment.
Redressal Committees have been constituted in all units of the Company. Meetings are conducted on
regular intervals.
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The Committee conducted various programmes in an effort to promote the well-being of all lady employees
of the Company. A Training programmes on “Work life Balance for Lady Employees”, as well as a talk on
“Physical and Mental well being of women at workplace” were conducted by Dr. Leela Kumari, Consultant
HLL Management Academy for the benefit of women employees. International Women’s Day was
celebrated in a befitting manner at Head office and Units. Director (Finance) Dr. Geeta Sharma addressed
the lady employees of Head office and Units and subsidiaries through video-conferencing.

Our Company received eight complaints regarding Sexual Harassment during the financial year 2018-19.
All the complaints were dealt with appropriately.

25.INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

In order to ensure timely and accurate filing of GST returns with validated data and minimum human
intervention, the company implemented ASP/GSP (Application service Provider/GST Suvidha Provider)
solution and integrated with the SAP application.

To streamline pan India operations through a single platform, the different software applications
implemented across Retail Business Division outlets were migrated to a single software.

26.RESEARCH &DEVELOPMENT
Key Technological & Distribution Partnerships

HLL has developed partnerships with various domestic and international corporate organizations,
development agencies and NGOs to be at the forefront of technological innovation. HLL has successfully
commercialised several indigenous technologies developed by premier research institutions such as Sree
Chitra Tirunal Institute of Medical Sciences and Technology (SCTIMST) Thiruvananthapuram, Central
Drug Research Institute, Lucknow (CDRI) and Biotech Consortium India Ltd. (BCIL). These partnerships
have achieved various strategic marketing objectives for the company across various markets.

With an aim to become a truly world-class provider of healthcare products and services, HLL has been
seeking to partner with companies for knowledge sharing, technology and market access. Over the
years, HLL has developed strong networks with various corporate organisations, development agencies
and NGOs which has enabled it to produce cost-effective and high quality medical devices, drugs and
contraceptives.

During the year HLL has also signed MoUs with the below mentioned institutions for joint collaborations

Name of the party Item Date

Collaborative projects especially for Endometriosis.

HLL & TBGRI 1Yr

1=t April 2019

Funding Received for R & D activities

The R&D projects of the Corporate R&D Centre has received funding from marquee entities for its research
initiatives in the physical health domain.

Funding received by HLL's CRDC for ongoing R&D projects during the year under review is given below

. . . . Year of
Funding entity Purpose Funding Received Award
Indian Council for Medical
Research (ICMR) Development of Novel Female Condom INR 23.6 lakhs 2018
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Your Company has incurred expenditure on Research & Development during the year 2018-19 as
mentioned below:

Capital Expenditure: Nil
Revenue Expenditure: Rs. 585.56 lakh
27.QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

During the year, the Company’s manufacturing units/divisions continue to possess the certifications
mentioned below:

* |ISO 9001:2015 certification for manufacturing units at Peroorkada, Akkulam, Kochi, lrapuram,
Kanagala&Manesar for Quality Management System.

+ ISO 13485:2016 certification for manufacturing units at Peroorkada, Akkulam, Kochi, Irapuram,
Kanagala&Manesar for Medical Devices Quality Management System.

* |SO 14001:2015 certification for manufacturing units at Peroorkada, Akkulam, Kochi and Kanagala for
efficient Environment Management System.

+ BS OHSAS 18001:2007 certification for units at Peroorkada, Akkulam, Kanagala and Kochi for
Occupational Health and Safety.

* |SO 50001:2011 Certification at Peroorkada for Energy Management System.

» NABL accreditation for finished products testing laboratory at Peroorkada Unit, Thiruvananthapuram
in accordance with ISO 17025:2005.

» CE Mark for Male Condoms at Peroorkada and Kochi Units.

» CE Mark for Female Condoms produced at Kochi Unit.

* CE Mark for Blood Bags produced at Akkulam Unit.

» CE mark for Pregnancy Test Cards for self testing, produced at Manesar Unit.

» SABS Mark for Female Condoms produced at Kochi unit and the manufacturing site is WHO/UNFPA
pre-qualified for female condoms.

» SABS Mark and NF Mark for Male Condoms produced at Peroorkada Unit.

» Peroorkada Factory is WHO/UNFPA prequalified and also meets a wide range of international quality
specifications/standards/guidelines such as ISO 4074:2015, ASTM D 3492, GOST-4645-81 etc.

* NABL accreditation for medical testing at HINDLABS, New Delhi in accordance with ISO 15189:2012.
¢ |SO 9001: 2015, ISO 13485 : 2016 and CE certificate for Personal Lubricant Gel at Peroorkada Unit.

* New certificate obtained for Personal Lubricant Gel Drug License from Drugs Control Department,
Kerala, Personal Lubricant Gel CE certificate from M/s.UK Cert, Personal Lubricant Gel ISO 13485
certificate from M/s. TNV Certifications Pvt. Ltd., Personal Lubricant Gel ISO 9001 certificate from
M/s. TCCPL

28.HUMAN RESOURCES

28.1 Human Resources Development

Your company gives high priority for development of human resources employed by them. During the
year under review, the company had organized various training programmes involving 263 man days for
executives and 1626 man days for workmen.
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28.2 Industrial Relations

The year 2018-19 witnessed harmonious industrial relations in the company as in the previous years, and
no man days lost on account of labour unrest.

28.3 Reservation for SC/ST/OBC and physically challenged

The company continues to follow the presidential directives in respect of reservation to SC/ST/OBC
Communities and efforts are taken to fulfill the directives in Recruitment and Promotion. Serious and
focused effort was also taken for Special Recruitment Drives. The representation of SC/ST/OBC/Persons
with Disabilities categories in the total employee strength as on 01.04.2019 is given below:

Description No. of employees
Representation of :  SC 247
ST 76
OBC 409
Persons with Disabilities 49
Other Categories 788
Total Strength of Employees 1569

Status of implementation of posts reserved for persons with disabilities in HLL Lifecare Limited as on
01.04.2019

No. of Post reserved for PwDs No. of Post currently held by PwDs
Total

number . Locomotor . Locomotor
LG of posts BI:;:C:ZSVSS Hearing disability or Others BI::(:ESVSS Hearing disability or Others

identified vision impaired crebral vision impaired crebral

identified identified

A&B 373 4 4 4 3 1 0 8 0
C&D 1196 12 12 12 12 B 10 26 1

Training details attended by Directors

SI. No Name Designation Date of Training Subject Institute Venue
NIL

29.IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE POLICY

Your Company has complied with the provisions made in the Official Language Act of 1963, OL Rules of
1976, Presidential Directions, Annual Programme issued by the Government of India with utmost devotion.

During the year your Company conducted 6 Technical training programmes in which 105 employees
took the advantage. The Technical Seminar was conducted for familiarizing with the advanced on line
facilities such as google voice typing google translate, Microsoft, Google Indic, Inscript key board,
google converter, photo translation and other facilities developed by the Department of Official Language,
Ministry of Home Affairs, New Delhi.

Awareness programme on OL Policy was given to 46 employees .Your Company organized Hindi Diwas
and Hindi Fortnight Celebrations in a befitting manner towards creating a condusive environment in the
company. Various competitions were conducted separately for employees, children of employees, Top
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Management and for the students of the Mahila Mandiram School, Poojappura. 90 students participated
in the competitions from the School. In addition to this, Hindi Mela, Viswa Hindi Diwas, Viswa Mother
tongue Day, All India OL Conference. Various incentives and awards were instituted in the Company
among Units, Sections such as Rolling shield for Units, Leading section Award and an overall citation for
an employee who contribute more in the field of Official Language Implementation in the Company as a
whole in addition to the awards prescribed by the Government of India.

Your Company is publishing OL Magazine ‘Samanvaya’ half yearly ‘Corporate News'’ the news letter of
the company in Hindi’ and ‘Moments’ the photo news letter in bilingual in every month. ‘Samanvaya’ was
adjudged as the best magazine by the TOLIC(Undertaking).

During the year under review, the hon’ble members of the Parliamentary Committee on OL inspected the
implementation of OL Policy in HLL.

Your Company is also the convener of TOLIC (U), Thiruvananthapuram and various programmes were
conducted under the auspices of TOLIC in order to promote and propagate Official Language Hindi in the
member offices. Competitions conducted for member offices and children of the employees of member
offices, State Level Inter TOLIC Technical Seminar, Kavi Sammelan& Quiz competition, 5 day Language
training through Video Conference by Central Hindi Training Institute, Orientation Programme on OL
Policy and Technology for Heads of Member Offices, Technical Seminar for college teachers & Students,
and Ganamela at Old Age Home (ladies) were organised. Hindi Magazine of TOLIC ‘Thapasya’ was also
released during the year. TOLIC (U) was bagged Southern Regional Official Language Award (lind Place)
instituted by the Department of Official Language, Ministry of Home Affairs, New Delhi.

30.CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

Your company has a Corporate Communication Department which act as a convergence media agency for
the different business divisions across the organization. As the world of communication has gone through
tremendous transformation, with new developments and innovations, the Corporate Communications
Department has adopted innovative initiatives with a vision to position HLL as a Global Healthcare
Delivery Company that upholds highest values in terms of quality products and services at affordable
prices, for the benefit of the global community. The division has a well developed in-house design platform
which provides customized creative, design solution for all communication material emanating from the
Organisation.

In order to facilitate dissemination of information and to create positive image of the organisation, your
Company has been regularly liaisoning with local public and influence groups, supporting local and national
events, providing press releases to the media and online media, placing write-ups in top publications,
publishing corporate brochures on various activities of the Company, developing and telecasting Corporate
Videos and regularly organizing press meetings to announce the developments of the Company. In
addition to releasing corporate advertisements, your Company has been regularly updating developments
and events in Social media platforms.

31.HLL MANAGEMENT ACADEMY (HMA)

HLL Management Academy (HMA) was registered as a not-for-profit society under The Travancore Cochin
Literary Scientific and Charitable Societies Registration Act, 1955. During 2018-19, the major activities of
HMA under the specific functional verticals / cells for Training, Skill Development, Academics, Recruitment
and Research and Consultancy are as follows:

31.1 Training
»  Conducted

+ Management Development Training programme to 201 Senior / Middle Level Executives of Kerala
State PSU’s in association with Department of Planning and Economic Affairs, Govt of Kerala in 8
batches.
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« 06" edition of International Training Programme on “Procurement Management in Healthcare Sector”
was conducted from 29 January — 02 February 2019, with Twenty Three participants from various
State and Central Government organizations including seven participants from The Ministry of Health,
Govt of Srilanka.

» Safety training to 30 employees of Travancore Titanium Products Ltd (a Govt. of Kerala undertaking)

+ 5 Management Development Programmes (MDP) covering 47 executives. There were also
representation from other organizations like State PSU’s and the Private sector apart from HLL and
its subsidiaries

» 2 Staff Development Programmes (SDP) covering 21 employees of HLL and its subsidiaries.
» 3 Think Tank Executive Lecture Series were conducted in 2018-19 with eminent personalities from
various fields giving lectures in different topics.
31.2. Skill Development
» Training Programmes Conducted

» Recognition Prior Learning (RPL) training to 1000 employees of Peroorkada Factory, HLL Lifecare
Ltd in association with Rubber Skill Development Council is ongoing. Already completed training to
496 employees.

* Recognition Prior Learning (RPL) training to 500 employees of Kerala State Rubber Co-operative
Ltd (RUBCO) in association with Rubber Skill Development Council is ongoing. Already completed
training to 60 employees of RUBCO.

» Courses Conducted

* One Batch of General Duty Assistant (GDA) course with 31 students under Healthcare Sector Skill
Council (HSSC) with funding from Additional Skill Acquisition Programme, Govt of Kerala (ASAP).

« Conducted the following courses (for one batch each) in association with Rubber Skill Development
Council (RSDC) with funding from National Urban Livelihood Mission (NULM)

1. Lab Chemist — One Batch — 29 students
2. Junior Rubber Technician — One Batch — 25 students
3. Material Handling & Storage Operator — One Batch — 26 students
Out of the total 80 students, 56 students have completed the course.
»  Partnered with IL & FS Skills School

» 235 students have undergone the General Duty Assistant Course in 9 batches with funding from
Ministry of Minority Affairs, Govt of India, out of which 156 passed the course.

» 8 students have undergone the Emergency Medical Technician Course (self-paid), All the 8 students
have passed the course

» Institutional Association

* Completed the procedures for Institutional association with RSDC, Maharashtra for conducting the
skill development courses proposed to be conducted during FY 2019-20.
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» Completed the procedures for institutional association with a leading pharmacy college in Kottayam
district, Kerala for conducting the skill development courses proposed to be conducted during FY
2019-20.

31.3. Research & Consultancy

Entered into a MoU with Kerala Institute of Local Administration (KILA), an autonomous institution
under Govt of Kerala for a period of three years in executing social development projects.

32.VIGILANCE

Vigilance Division issues various guidelines, provides supervision and relevant assistance and coordinates
action with various units/offices of the company to ensure probity & integrity at all levels in the company.
As a part of this, vigilance inspections, investigations/enquires, system study etc. are carried out from time
to time to ensure adherence to the rules and regulations. Dissemination of preventive vigilance advice
and system improvement directives to all stakeholders is another major function executed by the Division.
The findings of Vigilance Division is brought to the notice of the Competent Authority to enable appropriate
actions.

In the year 2018, the Vigilance Awareness Week was observed by units and offices of the company and
its subsidiaries from 29" October to 3 November 2018 on the CVC theme “Eradicate Corruption - Build a
New India”, where Integrity Pledge was adhered to by all the officers/employees.

33.INTEGRITY PACT

One of the initiatives of the Central Vigilance Commission (CVC) to eradicate corruption in procurement
activity is introduction of the Integrity Pact in large value contracts in Government Organizations. Based
on the guidelines/Office Memorandum issued by the Central Vigilance Commission, your Company has
already adopted Integrity Pact Policy. The Integrity Pact Policy adopted by the Company is applicable
in respect of all contracts of both revenue & capital nature exceeding the threshold limit of Rs.10.00 Cr.
Besides, In the case of Capital and Revenue items that are Proprietary in nature, the Integrity Pact would
apply to all transactions/contracts irrespective of the value of transaction.

Shri M.J. Joseph ICAS (Retd.), Ex-Controller General of Accounts [Secretary Rank] was appointed as the
Independent External Monitor for HLL Lifecare Ltd. by the Central Vigilance Commission. Your Company
has also conducted structured meetings of the Independent External Monitor with Chairman & Managing
Director and other Executives. Integrity Pact Policy has been uploaded in the web site of the Company.

34.RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

Your Company has implemented Right to Information (RTI) Act, 2005, which enhances the common
citizens by providing access to information with a view to enlighten them on the accountability and
transparency practised in the Company. The Company has always endeavoured to ensure that various
enabling provisions of the RTI Act, 2005 are implemented in letter and spirit.
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RTI Return Summary - 2018-19

The number of RTI applications received and disposed off during year 2018-19 is given below:

Opening Balance as on 01.04.2018 6
Total applications received during 2018-19

Quarter | 21

Quarter Il 29

Quarter Ill 46

Quarter IV 21
Total 117

Applications rejected during 2018-19 8
Information furnished during 2018-19 110
Pending to reply as on 31.03.2019 5

35.AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

During the year under review, your Company received the following awards and recognitions:

a. HLL PFT has been Awarded Second Position from “Kerala State Pollution Control Board” on

7th June 2018 in the Category "Large Industry” for substantial and sustained efforts in Pollution
Control and for initiatives in Environment Protection

b. HLL PFT received Outstanding performance in Industrial Safety in Very large factories category
(above 500 workers) from Department of Factories & Boilers Kerala State on safety day celebrations
held on 04.03.2019 at Ernakulam.

c. HLL PFT received Best Safety Committee Award from Department of Factories & Boilers Kerala
State on safety day celebrations held on 04.03.2019 at Ernakulam.

d. HLL PFT received SRESHTA SURAKSHA PURASKAR for Outstanding Performance in Very
Large Catogories from National Safety council Kerala Chapter on National safety day celebrations
held on 04.03.2019 at Safety Training & Research Centre, Ernakulam.

e. HLL PFT received for BEST PERFORMANCE OF SAFETY COMMITTEE from National Safety
council Kerala Chapter on National safety day celebrations held on 04.03.2019 at Safety Training
& Research Centre, Ernakulam.

36.APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors would like to make a special mention of the valuable guidance, support and co-operation
your Company has been receiving from the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare and other Ministries of
Government of India and look forward to their continued support in all future endeavors.

The Directors express their sincere thanks to the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, the Principal
Director of Commercial Audit & Ex-officio Member of Audit Board, Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors,
Secretarial Auditors and Internal Auditors for the co-operation and support extended by them.

The Directors take this opportunity to thank the Company’s bankers, regulatory authorities, customers,
vendors, consultants, technology licensors, contractors and other business associates and trading
partners for their continued support and confidence reposed in the Company.
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Your Directors also place on record their deep appreciation to employees at all levels for their hard work,
dedication and commitment.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

K Beji George IRTS
Chairman & Managing Director
[DIN: 08419099]

5t September, 2019
New Delhi.
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St it 2013 F 4wy 134(3) (TH) % SFER S Frm 2013 (Fram) & @ ofed ga1 3 1ard 2019 % weme
T Herw Frer # RO % A S £

T &
(fraw 2 3w)
feraor 2017-18 2018-19
fartett AR g
ferstett
T T (FFe) & ety T 2,40,30,440.00 1,53,74,746.00
T () 15,32,10,799.00 9,91,04,540.00
R/ e () 6.38 6.45
sft Seare
SeuTted e (F sfeerg T) 3,26,757.00 2.23.922.00
TF U S ot 1 30T (fere) 1,16,285.00 73,597.00
Seutted e /foreX (% efeerg war/feiex) om] =&t 2.78 3.04
AT/ (%) 21.15 31.93
YT TIETET R gRT
BT ] T Il
T T St A ] T
R (A 27) 2617.00 1025.46
T () 10,67,74,730.90 5,46,68,136.90
R/ ) 40,800.00 53,310.69
= A
i (frex) 16,39,652.00 16,95311.00
T ) 4,68,93,219.00 6,75,95,140.00
R/ ) 28.60 39.87
SauTE & Afd gfe w1 SuNRT
HUSH
e (TS 31ET)- IR (Hiess) 1,819.13 942.19
fotett (% Sfeerg Tawia st ot (W 8418) 8,148.65 9,057.29
w i et (fet foey) ufd soee 31 e (Ae 6.19) 2.52 2.96
HIeT ] T 323
T T (T 2Y) ufd et o 1.97 244
HR-2T
SIS el TRAMT (ST 3737) 237 2.86
fosTett wfd qereret o1eg (% sfeerg wa) 1,59 462.00 1,58.801.00
ATAT-St/UA, Feett, e ue freeiet
SeUTiee et TRATT (AT 3A5T)
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ANNEXURE - A

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Information as per Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts)
Rules 2014 forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2019.

FORM A
(See Rule 2)
Particulars 2017-18 2018-19
Power & Fuel
Electricity
Purchased (Units) KWH 2,40,30,440.00 1,63,74,746.00
Amount (%) 15,32,10,799.00 9,91,04,540.00
Rate /Unit (%) 6.38 6.45
Own generation
Units generated (KWH) 3,26,757.00 2,23,922.00
HSD Oil consumption (Ltr) 1,16,285.00 73,597.00
Units generated/ Ltr (KWH/Ltr) 2.78 3.04
Cost /Unit %) 21.15 31.93
Through Steam Turbine Generator NA NA
Coal NA NA
LNG
Quantity (Metric Tonne) 2,617.00 1025.46
Amount (%) 10,67,74,730.90 5,46,68,136.90
Rate /Unit (%) 40,800.00 53,310.69
Furnace Oil
Quantity (Ltr.) 16,39,652.00 16,95,311.00
Amount (%) 4,68,93,219.00 6,75,95,140.00
Rate /Unit (%) 28.60 39.87
Consumption per unit of production
Condoms
Unit (M. Pcs) — Production (Moulded) 1,819.13 942.19
Electricity (KWH) per M. Pcs (Standard 8418) 8,148.65 9,057.29
Furnace Oil (KL) per M. Pcs (Standard 6.19) 2.52 2.96
Coal NA 3.23
LNG (MT) per M.Pcs 1.97 2.44
Copper =T
Total Quantity Produced (M. Pcs) 2.37 2.86
Electricity per M. Pcs (KWH) 1,59,462.00 1,58,801.00
Mala-D/N, Saheli, Novex&Preventol
Total Quantity Produced (M. Pcs)
Mala-D/N (M. Cycles) 45.06 56.98
Saheli, Novex&Preventol 8.66 6.52
Electricity consumed per million cycles of Mala-D/N 1,221.81 839.80
Saheli, Novex&Preventol 287.61 296.79
Electricity consumed (both products)-KWH 7,99,765.00 6,72,127.00
Blood Bags
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Teedt, Freeg T feerer 287,61 296.79
TUA e fastett (T 3R) - % Sy T 7,99,765.00 6,72,127.00
= I
SIS el TRHTT (ST 37T 7.81 10.54
i T festett (& efeerg wa) 0.290 0.240
E> e
ICUSA et TR (g T5) 131 0.61
foretett ufa a5 (% sfeerg Ta) 7.24 9.99
Toh ST - shiE
Scutted e (fretam) 1337.20 177636
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farstett ufer feretiom (3 sfeerg wen) 313.00 296 47
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T TF € ot 9iq qurere fhe (fereR) 4,149 38 2,629.54
Hfga FHueH
Ieutfed et aRET (37T 28,25,987.00 17,20,459.00
fastett ufe 3153 (% <oty w) 0.08 0.09
FfeT utehT
3IAET (SIS 35%) 251.43 197.94
T Sl TE fostelt (F sfeerg T 8,86,815.00 7,15,257.00
T i TE feastelt ufd qrerer 3,527.00 3,614.00
(F) TSIt EIeT0T
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)
.

)
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Total Quantity Produced (M. Pcs) 7.81 10.54
Electricity per bag (KWH) 0.290 0.240
Sutures

Total Quantity Produced ( Lacs Dozen) 1.31 0.61
Electricity per dozen (KWH) 7.24 9.99
Bulk Drug —Centchroman

Unit (Kg) produced 1337.20 1776.36
Electricity consumed (KWH) 4,18,947.00 5,26,643.00
Furnace Oil consumed (Ltr.) 1,40,793.00 1,45,714.50
Electricity per Kg (KWH) 313.00 296.47
Furnace Oil per Kg (KL) 105.29 82.03
Pregnancy Test Kits

Total Quantity Produced (M. Kit) 12.05 12.93
Electricity per Million Kit (KWH) 7,690.46 7,727.38
HSD Oil per Million Kit (Ltr.) 4,149.38 2,629.54
Female Condoms

Total Quantity Produced (Pcs) 28,25,987.00 17,20,459.00
Electricity per Pc (KWH) 0.08 0.09
Sanitary Napkins

Production (M.Pcs) 251.43 197.94
Electricity consumed (KWH) 8,86,815.00 7,15,257.00
Electricity consumed per M.Pcs 3,527.00 3,614.00

[A] CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

a)

Energy conservation measures executed at the Peroorkada factory, Thiruvananthapuram
[PFT] are mentioned below:

Installed 25 nos. of energy efficient ceiling fans (BLDC type) by replacing old fans.

Installeﬂ 200 nos. of LED tube lights in plant and administration building by replacing old CFL
type lights.

During the year under review, PFT generated 27,518 units of electricity from solar energy.
}E()gEnt the year under review, PFT received a power factor incentive of Rs.18,17,307/- from

Energy conservation measures taken at Akkulam Factory, Thiruvananthapuram [AFT] are
mentioned below:

Replaced 100 nos of 40W Fluorescent Tube Lamps with 18W LED Lamps in the factory with an
investment of Rs.0.55 Lakhs and thereby achieved savings of Rs.0.52 Lakhs / Annum.

Shifted, Installed and commissioned Solar Water Heater for the usage of Hot Water for utensils
washing in Canteen and thereby achieved saving of Rs.0.20 Lakhs / Annum.

Enlergy conservation measures taken at Kakkanad Factory, Cochin [KFC] are mentioned
elow.

Generation of 14,050.00 units of solar energy which is equivalent to 4.63% of the total current cost
consumed at KFC.

d)

Energy conservation measure taken at Manesar Factory, Gurgaon [MFG] is mentioned
below.

Instead of DG set, the manufacturing of diagnostic kits is switched on power supply with significant
reduction in consumption of diesel.
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FORM B
[B] TECHNOLOGY ABSORBTION, ADOPTION AND INNOVATION

B.1 Peroorkada factory, Thiruvananthapuram [PFT]

i) Successfully installed Microfluidizer for graphene condom production at PFT

i) Successfully carried out indigenous development of logo centering system for BRT packing

machines.

iii) Introduced data logging system for real time monitoring of process parameters (temperature)
in rrt make double line moulding machines (ME, MF& MG).

iv) Successfully installed and commissioned personal lubricant manufacturing facility at PFT

v) Successfully developed vending machine for sanitary napkin at PFT

vi) Successfully developed electronic tesing machine for Female condom at PFT

B.2 Akkulam Factory, Thiruvananthapuram [AFT]

Installed & Commissioned new Impulse Sealing System and provided Variable Frequency Drive
(VFD) for Conveyor Motor and overhauled Air Expulsion type PP Cover Sealing Machine and
thereby increased output and reduced breakdown.

B.3 Kakkanad Factory, Cochin [KFC]

Installed and commissioned BRT facility through cost effective methods thereby converting the
area into a classified area as per medical devices rule 2017.

B.4 Manesar Factory, Gurgaon [MFG]

For profitability improvement and sustainable business, outsourced diagnostic manufacturing

basis through Expression of Interest (EOI)

[C] RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R & D) ACTIVITIES

C.1 Peroorkada Factory, Thiruvananthapuram [PFT]

Sl.
No

R & D ACTIVITIES

Developed yellow coloured condoms for Banana Fla-
vored Condoms.

Developed Kulfi, Grape, Lemon and Honey flavoured
Condoms.

Developed new Vendor for antisticking agent (M/s.
United Pestichem and NonionicsPvt LTD.)

BENEFITS DERIVED AS A
RESULT OF R&D.

Value addition to Banana flavoured condoms by
improving the aesthetic appeal resulting in customer
delight.

New Variants in the market

Better Quality, Price and alternate source for Process
Chemical.
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C. 2 Kanagala Factory, Belgaum [KFB]

i)

Developed aqueous formulation for Ezypilltablets (Levonorgestrel 1.5 mg), for supply to ministry
of Health. This formulation is completely devoid of organic solvents. Removal of solvents provide
a safe working environment and reduced cost of input materials compared to the pre-existing
formulation for this product. The developed formulation has better dissolution properties and
hence better bioavailability.

Developed aqueous formulation for Levonogestrel & Ethinyl estradiol combination (Regular
contraceptives- 21 cycle/28 cycle) tablets for the purpose of bioequivalence studies, our
formulation has successfully passed in pivotal BE study along with comparator. The Pivotal BE
study on this formulation is under progress for registration purpose of this product with WHO
Geneva and other regulatory authorities, where we can export this product in future.

[D] SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES

D.1 Peroorkada Factory, Thiruvananthapuram [PFT]

i)

Conducted Internal Process safety audit at PFT, a Proactive system approach for mitigation /
prevention of Process related incidents/injuries that could occur as a result of failures in processes,
procedures, or equipment.

Yards earmarked with lock and key facility for disposing scraps by segregating from source such
as Plastic crates, metal wastes, SS, Core plastic, glass, wood etc.

Buy back procedure introduced with the supplierfor the disposal of used Ink bottles

Consistency in Treated Effluent characteristics in the test value of Treated Effluent by the
introduction of Poly electrolyte dosing through Pinch valve in the mixing channel of ETP which
also resulted in reduction in sludge volume by 40%

Annual release of Newsletter: “SurakshaPathrika 2018 by Director (Technical & Operations)
covering Safety and Environment related updates of HLL PFT for creating awareness and
internal communication among employees was released during the Safety Week celebration on
05th Mar 2018

D.2 Akkulam Factory, Thiruvananthapuram [AFT]

1.

Replaced 100 nos of 40W Fluorescent Tube Lamps with 18W LED Lamps in the factory with an
investment of Rs.0.55 Lakhs and thereby achieved savings of Rs.0.52 Lakhs / Annum

Shifted, Installed and commissioned Solar Water Heater for the usage of Hot Water for utensils
washing in Canteen and thereby achieved saving of Rs.0.20 Lakhs / Annum.

Future Plans

1.

Installation and commissioning of Fourth Side Sealing Machine for Suture Production. Investment
Rs.3.50 Lakhs and expected savings Rs.5.00 Lakhs / Annum.

Replacement of old conventional Air Handling Unit of Implants production facility with new Energy
Efficient Double Skin one. Investment-Rs.7.50 Lakhs.

Replacement of Sand Filter Bed, Carbon Filter Bed & Cation Bed of DM Water Plant with a new
one for improving the water quality. Investment- Rs.3.00 Lakhs.
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4. Replacement of existing faulty Power Condition Units of 25 KWp Solar system with new higher
efficiency one. Investment- Rs.2.50 Lakhs.

5. Replacement of existing old cooling towers of HVAC with new advanced one. Investment-
Rs.2.00 Lakhs.

Foreign exchange earnings & outgo

Particulars 2017-18 2018-19

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Earnings 7,081.99 8,024.01
Outgo 12,825.66 11,349.31
Total 19,907.65 19,373.32
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ANNEXURE- B
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES OF THE COMPANY

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) & Sustainability is an integral part of the Company’s ethos and
policy and the Company has been pursuing this on a sustained basis. The Company has framed and
adopted a Policy on CSR & Sustainability to align its philosophy to initiate measures and pursue socially
useful programmes with the objectives and activities of CSR envisaged and incorporated in the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and the policy directions issued by the Government from time
to time. The Policy on CSR & Sustainability formulated in 2013 was subsequently revised to align with the
newly introduced provisions for Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013.

As per sub-section 5 of Section 135 every Company for which the provisions of CSR is applicable shall
spend at least 2% of the average net profit of the Company made during the three immediately preceeding
financial years. The average net profit of three immediately preceeding financial year is given below:

Net profit as per Section 198
Year of the Companies Act, 2013
(Rs. In lakhs)
2015-16 3,803.04
2016-17 (4,059.51)
2017-18 (6,486.94)
Total (6,743.41)
Average of the three years (2,247.46)

From the above it can be seen that the average of last three years is net loss. Therefore, the provisions
regarding CSR is not applicable for HLL during the financial year 2018-19.

A. CSR Initiatives:

For the year 2018-19 Company has not made budgetary provision for CSR as there is no mandatorily
allocable amount from the average net profit of the preceeding 3 years. However, HLL has continued the
CSR projects which were done during the past years.

1. My City Project

1. As part of CSR programme Company has undertaken waste management and beautification of
Kowdiar ward of Trivandrum Corporation where the mother Plant of the Company is located. This
programme is being continued now. The expenditure in this regard will work out to Rs.5.5 lakhs.

Activity Report

»  Sustainably running the Waste Management at Kowdiar Ward from 2014 onwards; 1254 households
are benefiting from this.

a. At Source Bio-Waste Management — 285
b. Bio-Waste Processing at Thumburmuzhy — 185

c. Collection of Bio-wastes and processing in a Farm — 784
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»  Weekly collection of 300 kg of plastic wastes and handing over to Trivandrum Corporation and Monthly
collection of other wastes.

»  Daily cleaning of the main roads and sub-roads of Kowdiar ward.

»  Quarterly cleaning of the drainage behind PFT.
2. Pakalveedu Project

This programme also continued which was undertaken earlier aiming at rehabilitation of cured patients
of the Mental Hospital, Trivandrum and recovered patients are engaged in condom peeling job and
are paid remuneration for the same. On an average 20 people are engaged on daily basis and they
earn Rs.3500/- to Rs.3700/- per month. The expenditure in this regard will be Rs.2.5 lakhs.

3. HLL Pratheeksha Charitable Society

The Society is registered with the Objective of sponsoring students belonging to the BPL category to
pursue professional studies and also to support the health care of retired employees. Accordingly two
schemes were launched by the society; one for sponsoring students and the other for giving financial
support to the retired employees of the company for availing treatment for critical iliness.

Currently Company is sponsoring 108 students, including students of the previous years, pursuing
various streams of professional courses selected from Trivandrum district and Kanagala district, being
the two districts where the two major manufacturing units of the Company are located. The funds for
the society are pooled through the monthly individual contribution of all the employees.

B. HINDUSTAN LATEX FAMILY PLANNING PROMOTION TRUST(HLFPPT)

Set up by HLL Lifecare Ltd in 1992, Hindustan Latex Family Planning Promotion Trust (HLFPPT)
is a non-profit National organisation serving across the country in 25 states & 3 UTs through over
sixtyactiveprogrammes covering the wide spectrum of RMNCH+A (Reproductive, Maternal, Newborn,
Child and Adolescent health care) and HIV prevention and control. With a vision of touching live with
quality care, compassion and emerge as a globally credible organization, HLFPPT is currently providing
services in the following areas:

—_

Family Planning

N

Maternal Healthcare

w

Adolescent Health Care

N

)

)

)

) HIV Prevention, Care and Support
) CSR Partnerships
)

)

)

)

(22 Ne))

Skill Development

~

Elderly Care& Support
8
9

Research and Development
Child Health and Disabilities

With over 27 years of partnership with Ministry of Health and Family Welfare (MoHFW), Ministry of
Skill Development and Entrepreneurship (MSDE), Ministry of Social Justice & Empowerment (MoSJE),
Ministry of Minority Affairs (MoMA), Ministry of Rural Development (MoRD), National Urban Livelihood
Mission (NULM), Several State departments of National Health Missions (NHM), National Aids Control
Organisation (NACO), International NGOs &CSR partners etc, HLFPPT has been successfully providing
technical supports, program implementation and monitoring of various reproductive and child health, HIV
and AIDS prevention, Care and support programs. These mammoth years of experience have fortified the
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organization to build strategic expertise in the area of social marketing of contraceptives, social franchising
health networks, and technical support to National and International partners, direct implementations &
capacity building of stakeholders at various levels, community development programmes and research &
monitoring.

The year 2018-2019 has been filled with achievements and learnings for HLFPPT. Following section will
share the key highlights for the year 2018-19.

(i) Social Marketing - Changing Community’s Behaviour for a Healthy life

Under the Social Marketing program which is meant especially for the economically weaker section of the
society, HLFPPT is covering 290 districtsin15 statesnamely- Rajasthan, Himachal Pradesh, West Bengal,
Odisha, Uttar Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh, Jharkhand, Gujarat, Bihar, Assam, Chhattisgarh, Madhya
Pradesh, Maharashtra, Delhi,and Haryana.

HLFPPT for the year 2018-19 has been marketing Rakshak, Josh- Dotted, Sanitary Napkin“Sakhi’along
with government brand Deluxe Nirodh condom and Mala-DOCP focusing on making easy accessible at
all the traditional and non-traditional outlets across operative states. The products have been promoted
through the use of media in the form of press advertisements, outdoor promotional activities which include
hoardings, posters, stickers, envelopes, and danglers at chemist shops. These efforts have resulted in a
total sale of over63 million condoms, 25,000 IUCD’s , Total 25.50 lakhs sanitary napkins & 20.00 lakh cycle
of Oral Contraceptive Pills (OCP)in FY 2018-19.

(ii) Social Franchising — Providing Innovative framework for private sectors & health providers to
share a common platform

Under Social Franchising program, HLFPPT has developed its very own health network called Merry
Gold Health Network (MGHN). It is one of its kind and one of the largest socialfranchisingmodels with a
public-private partnership in India. MGHN clinics facilitate quality health care services especially Maternal
and Child Healthcare and Family Planning services to communities at very nominal rates. It establishes a
strong linkage from Merry Tarang Network (Community health volunteers who provide elementary MCH
information to people) link beneficiaries to various MGHN facilities. HLFPPT has instituted the network in
four States (Uttar Pradesh, Rajasthan, Bihar, Odisha) with a network of more than450 private hospitals.
Through Merry Gold Health Network, HLFPPT has so far ensured 3.4 million Antenatal Check-ups, over
7.80 lakh institutional deliveries, 2.4 lakh sterilizations and 3.05 lakhs IUCD’s insertion in FY 2018-19.

(iii) Utkrisht Impact Bond- Institutionalization of standard quality in Private Health Sectors

The Rajasthan DIB’s (widely known as Utkrisht) goal is to reduce maternal and infant mortality over
the next three years. The Rajasthan DIB includes USAID & Merck for Mothers as outcome funders and
HLFPPT & PSI as service providers implementing the program in exclusive geographies in Rajasthan.
During the project period, out of total 260 facilities would be engaged by HLFPPT and it is planned that
at least 180 private facilities across 19 districts (18 districts + Jaipur) would be capacitated to achieve the
accreditation standards. A phased approach would be undertaken in phase manner. In which, phase-| will
be focused on facilities in Jaipur and Alwar. The focus would be developing proof of concept and testing
the intervention model. Based on this, the learning’s and the model would be up-scaled to the other 17
districts of the state. In the first year of UTKRISHT program, a total of 1017 hospitals mapped, 92 no.
of hospitals engaged, 83 no. of hospitals are progressive and 51 certification have been done so far by
HLFPPT.

(iv) Capacity Building- Strengthening the system and hand-holding of various FWs/HSPs

Capacity Building for professionals, institutions and community members has been a major vertical of
HLFPPT. The organization maintains its strong emphasis on high-quality training content, resources,and
methodologies through skilled trainers and experts. The Cascading Model approach is followed wherein
national and regional-level master trainers train local governments and local government-level trainers
train communities at the grassroots level.

a. Capacitating the Health Workers of RKSK program of MoHFW
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b. Sensitizing Health Service Providers for [IUCD
c. Making training more efficient through the simulationbased project
d. Adolescent and Maternal Nutrition through sensitization workshops

(v) District Early Intervention Centres (DEIC)- Creating Centre of Excellence for Child Health &
Differently abled Children

Rashtriya Bal Swasthya Karyakaram (RBSK) was launched in 2013 to improve survival outcomes through
early identification and management of defects at birth, deficiencies, diseases, development delays
including disabilities-4Ds and assured link to care, support and treatment to meet these challenges
through DEICs at the district level. With support from MoHFW and NHM UP, HLFPPT has established and
operationalized one Centre of Excellence (COE) DEIC in District Gautam Budh Nagar in Uttar Pradesh.
The COE DEIC was inaugurated on 11th May 2018 by Prof. Rita Bhauguna Joshi, Hon’ble Cabinet Minister
for Health and Family Welfare, Maternal Child Welfare and Tourism, Government of U.P.

This Centre of Excellence (COE) Model DEIC has state-of-art infrastructure facilities, equipment’s with
specialized and trained human resource with standardized treatment, diagnosis and referral protocols
to ensure delivery of child-friendly services. This center also acts as a trainingcenter for other upcoming
DEICs proposed in other Districts.

The Noida-DEIC is equipped with age-appropriate and domain-specific equipment’s and with specifically
trained domain specialists in Paediatricians, Pathologist, Dental Surgeon, Occupational Therapy,
Psychology, Optometrists, Audio/Speech, counselor, Special Educator, Eye Specialists, etc. Till date since
launch, total footfall is 3398, total 19 cardiac cases operated, 1 squint case operated, 2 cleft lip and palate
operated and through liasoning 12 reading glasses provided, 24 Orthosis provided and 4 Hearing Aids
provided.

Apart from this, another DEIC will be operationalizing in Ghaziabad by the end of March 2019. Other
proposed DEICs are located in Assam, Kerala, etc.

(vi) HIV/AIDS Prevention, Care and Support
a. Providing Technical Support to SACS

To provide Technical Assistance in specific areas to the State Aids Control Society (SACS) and to
maintain the quality of program implementation for achieving Goals an objective of National AIDS
Control Programme (NACP), HLFPPT has been selected as an implementing agency to manage the
Technical Support Units in Maharashtra including Mumbai & Goa, Tamil Nadu including Pondicherry
form August, 2018 and in Odisha from September, 2018. In addition, HLFPPT has been implementing
the TSUs in Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, Madhya Pradesh, and Chhattisgarh State for many years.
HLFPPT having nationwide experience in learning is translated into inputs and support towards
strengthening the Functioning of the Programme Division such as Targeted Intervention, Strategic
Planning Management, Monitoring and Evaluation, Mainstreaming and Social Mobilization and
Capacity Building.

With the responsibilities of three new Technical Support Units (TSUs) in Maharashtra including Mumbai
& Goa, Tamil Nadu including Pondicherry and Odisha, HLFPPT is covering 184 districts in above
mentioned 9 states of India. There are more than 100 personals in 9 state of India providing technical
expertise to the SACS for achieving Goals and Objective of the National AIDS Control Programme.

b. Providing Care and Support to PLHIVs

To improve the survival and quality of life of Person Living with HIV (PLHIV), HLFPPT has been
managing 25 Sub-Sub recipients (SSRs) under VihaanProgramme in Punjab and Rajasthan State
from 2013. HLFPPT has been also awarded to manage the VihaanProgramme as Sub- Recipient
(SR) for “Care and Support for PLHA in India Program” grant of the Global Fund through Alliance India
in Madhya Pradesh from 1stDecember 2018. This program is being implemented with a key objective
of improving the survival and quality of life of PLHIVs by establishing 11 Care & Support Centres
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(CSCs) in Madhya Pradesh State as part of national effort to improve treatment outcomes and meet
the needs of PLHIVs, including those who are members of high-risk groups, women and children.

Presently, HLFPPT is managing 17 CSCs in Rajasthan, 8 in Punjab and 11 CSCs in Madhya
Pradesh State. Care and Support Centre (CSC) is a comprehensive facility for providing, counseling,
referral, outreach services and linkages to Social entitlements and Social welfare schemes to the
registered PLHIV.

C. Enabling environment for uptake of PPTCT Services:

HLFPPT is managing Ahanna Programme in 27 districts of Chhattisgarh and 38 districts of Bihar state
w.e.f. 1st January 2018 to 31st March 2021. Under this project, we are advocating to increase the
uptake of Prevention of Parent to Child Transmission (PPTCT) services by promoting periphery level
HIV screenings among pregnant women as part of ANC, for early identification of positive pregnant
women and linking them with PPTCT services.

(vii) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) — Enabling CSR reaching to underserved

The CSR partnerships enable HLFPPT to provide primary healthcare services to underprivileged
communities through technical assistance and advisory services. Through these partnerships,

HLFPPT establishes sustainable models of development that are replicable & scalable.

Currently, HLFPPT is working with various national companies and big brands like- Eastern Coalfields
(ECL), Indian Oil Corporation Ltd. (IOCL), Apollo Tyres, Suzlon Foundation, CLP India Private Ltd,
PTC Financial Services (PFS), Nuclear Power Corporation India Limited (NPCIL), Indian Social
responsibility Network (ISRN). With more than 15 projects, HLFPPT is offering Primary Healthcare
through CSR Partnerships across the nation. The Year 2018-19 has been another fruitful year for CSR
wing of the organization. For eg, Partnerships with ISRN, Mobile Medical Units for diseases related to
pollution and respiratory distress have been initiated in Bagu, Ghaziabad. Working with Public Service
Units like IOCL oil and petroleum, CSR diversified its portfolio with initiating MMU’s in hard terrains
of Assam. Recently, three mobile medical units have been launched in three districts of Delhi/NCR
(southeast, northwest and northeast) focussing on the marginalized population residing JhuggiJhopri
(JJ) clusters under the CSR initiative of PTC Financial services. As a part of the CSR initiative of
NPCIL, one MMU is inaugurated in Kakrapar site, Gujarat which will provide services to 14 villages
around the geography. In December 2018, Second Inning’s Home for the geriatric population was
operationalized in Kannur district of Kerala sponsored by Social Justice Department, Govt of Kerala.

(viii) Mobile Medical Units — Making Healthcare Services Accessible

Over the years, HLFPPT is operating and managing a fleet of Mobile Medical Units (MMU) across the
country for various donors for improving last mile access to quality healthcare services. Each MMU
is manned by a team of medical professionals, including Doctor, Nurse, Lab Technician, Pharmacist,
and Outreach Worker. MMU provides a range of curative services like treatment for minor ailments;
provision of first aid, minor surgical procedures; early clinical diagnosis of communicable diseases
and non-communicable diseases; referral of complicated cases; early diagnosis of pregnancy;
Antenatal check-up (ANC) check-ups; basic new-born care; family planning counselling; provision
of contraceptives; Sexual Transmitted Infection (STI) prevention and management, eye check-ups
etc. In addition, on a need basis, specialist services & specialized diagnostics are also provided to
the community. MMU also provides basic medicines, consumables,and diagnostics facilities to the
patients. Currently, HLFPPT is operationalizing over 160 MMUs across various states.

HLFPPT is operationalizing 130 Mobile Medical Units (MMUs) in Assam in Public Private Partnership
(PPP) mode for improving healthcare service delivery and health outcomes in the underserved areas.
The project has been rolled out with the support of the National Health Mission (Assam). The objective
of these MMUs is to provide primary & selective secondary healthcare services and medicines to
nearly 26 lakh population in about 2,600 villages across all the districts.

With the support and guidance of state & district level authorities, over 34,232 health camps were
conducted in 2018-2019 and provided health care services to more than 16.20 lakhs target audience.
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The programme has benefitted more than 3.61 lakh people with free lab test services during this
period.

(ix) Skill Development Programs- Skilling Youth for a sustainable livelihood

(x)

India despite being committed to Universal Health Coverage faces a huge gap of trained health care
professionals. This gap has been well highlighted in the 2013 report “No Health without workforce”
statingIndia’s dismal density of 15.2 skilled health professionals per 10,000 population (way below
the global threshold of 22.8). To address this gap and contribute towards Skill India Mission — the
flagship program of Government of India, HLFPPT has initiated a Skill Development Program. It aims
at developing a cadre of skilled human resources in healthcare and other allied sectors through quality
training and offering sustainable livelihood options to the youth.

The main objective of HLFPPT's skill division is to provide vocational training to underprivileged youth
in order to equip them with skills for better employment opportunities. As HLFPPT gained momentum
with skill training programs, skill division expanded their wings to other work sectors as well. Presently,
we are working in 10 work sectors and providing training in 44 job roles with 100% placement
assistance and upto 75 % placement to the successful candidates.

We are affiliated with 5 SSCs named as Healthcare Sector Skill Council (HSSC), Construction Skill
Development Council of India (CSDCI), Tourism and Hospitality Sector Skill Council (THSSC),
Retailers Association Skill Council of India (RASCI) and Apparel Sector Made-ups& Home Furnishing
Sector Skill Council (ASMHFSSC). HLFPPT got impaneled with the variouscentral and state level
nodal agencies and currently running 34 projects/schemes as a promising training provider (TP). We
have also achieved the status of Government Training Provider (GTP) with Uttar Pradesh State Skill
Development Mission (UPSDM) and Ministry of Social Justice & Empowerment (MoSJE).

With the above credibility, we have spread our footprints across 14 states. We have received targets
of 40,000 candidates for the year of FY 18-19. HLFPPT has been recognized at different platforms
for the implementation of skill projects. We were awarded as best TP at Sundergarh, Odisha for Deen
Dayal Upadhyaya Grameen Kaushalya Yojana (DDUGKY) project and participated in the launch of
SHREYAS portal where apprenticeship contracts were exchanged with our candidates. HLFPPT got
associated with the Ministry of Minority Affairs and Ministry of Social Justice & Empowerment for direct
implementation of their skill projects.

Research and Development- Plugging the gaps

HLFPPT’s multi-faceted experts are dedicated to conducting research that is both qualitative and
quantitative in nature. Expertise includes designing monitoring and evaluation frameworks; developing
performance indicators; and using technology like Geographic Information Systems (GIS), Mobile
Technology, Helplines, Hospital Management Information Systems, etc, to collate and analyze data.
In the year 2018-19 the Research and Development vertical of HLFPPT have proudly associated with
UNICEF — Uttar Pradesh and Way forward in Uttrakhand to conduct research studies on adolescent
health and mental health respectively. HLFPPT recently has been awarded a study by National Health
Mission (NHM) Meghalaya on “Family Planning Survey” planned across all districts of the state. The
organization presented a paper on “Extending the access to Family Planning in Uttar Pradesh” at the
4™ International Conference on Global Public Health 2018- Sri Lanka. Apart from this, SIFPSA has
impanelled HLFPPT as a Research and Monitoring Agency for conducting research and other surveys
and we have been awarded multiple research studies.

(xi) Social & Behaviour Change Communication (SBCC)

HLFPPT recognizes the proven effectiveness of Social Behaviour Change Communication (SBCC) in
the area of health promotion especially in increasing the use of family planning methods, prevention of
HIV/AIDS and improvement of new-born, children and maternal health and nutrition, therefore, SBCC
is an integral part of all the projects under HLFPPT. The organization specializes in customizing
appropriate messaging for the target population and key stakeholders, pre-testing messages and
materials and using relevant Information, Education, Communication (IEC) materials and interpersonal
communication tools to achieve defined behavioral objectives.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance

Your Company is renowned for exemplary governance standards since inception and continues to devote
its emphasis on transparency, accountability and integrity. The Company is committed to adhere to the
ethical values and thereby ensures fairness to all stakeholders including customers, employees, investors
and society at large. The basic objective of Corporate Governance policies adopted by the Company is
to attain the highest levels of transparency, accountability and integrity. This objective extends not merely
to complying with the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises issued
by the Department of Public Enterprises, but also to go beyond them by putting in place procedures and
systems, which are in accordance with the best practices of Corporate Governance. The Company has
been methodically following the Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by Department of Public
Enterprises and consistently scoring ‘Excellent’ grading.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has made the majority of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
effective from 1t April, 2014. The new Act is a positive step towards strengthening corporate governance

regime in the country. Your Company is already in substantial compliance with most of the governance
requirements provided under the new law.

The Company’s Corporate Governance policies and practices focus on the following principles:
1. To recognize the respective roles & responsibilities of the Board and Management
2. To achieve the highest degree of transparency by maintaining a high degree of disclosure levels.
3. To ensure and maintain high ethical standards in its functioning.
4. To ensure a sound system of risk management and internal controls.
5

To ensure that employees of the Company subscribe to the corporate values and apply them to
their conduct.

6. To ensure that the decision making process is fair and transparent.

7. To ensure that the Company follows globally recognized corporate governance practices.
A brief description of the Corporate Governance practices followed in your Company is given below.
1. SIZE AND COMPOSITION OF BOARD:

The composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience
and enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business.
Your Company, being a Government Undertaking, the appointment/nomination of all the Directors is done
by the President of India, through the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare. The Board has an appropriate
mix of executive and non-executive Directors. The Articles of Association of the Company stipulates that
the number of Directors shall not be less than three (3) and not more than ten (10).

The present actual strength of Board of Directors of the Company is Six (6) comprising

- Two (2) official Directors representing the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Government of India
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- Four (4) Functional Directors namely Chairman & Managing Director, Director (Technical &
Operation), Director (Marketing), and Director (Finance).

Among the Six (6) directors there is one (1) women director on the Board. The composition of the
Board is substantially in line with the Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by the Department
of Public Enterprises, Government of India.

The Composition of the Board of Directors as on 20" July, 2019 is given below. None of the
Directors are member of more than 10 Board level Committees of public companies in which they
are Directors nor holds chairmanship in more than five such committees.

No. of member-
. "(‘)‘:t-‘°f ship/ Chairman-
. . . er ship of Board
No. Name of the Director Category of Director Diretorship Committee in
held other
companies
1 Shri K Beji George IRTS Chairman and Managing Director 6 Nil
2 Dr. Dharmendra S Gangwar IAS Government Nominee Director 4 Nil
3 Dr. Mandeep K Bhandari IAS Government Nominee Director 1 Nil
4 Shri E A Subramanian Director (Technical & Operations) & 1
) Shri T. Rajasekar Director (Marketing) 1 3
6 Dr. Geeta Sharma Director(Finance) 6 Nil

The Board of Directors plays a primary role in ensuring good governance and smooth functioning of
the Company. The Board’s role, functions, responsibility and accountability are clearly defined. The
Board acts with autonomy and independence in exercising its strategic supervision, discharging its
fiduciary responsibilities and ensuring that the management observes the highest standards of ethics,
transparency and disclosure. Every member of the Board, including the Non-Executive Directors, has
full access to any information related to the Company.

2. MEETING AND ATTENDANCE

The Notice and Agenda notes of the Meetings are circulated to the Directors as far as possible well
in advance. During the financial year under review, five Board meetings were held on 30" May, 2018,
13" August, 2018, 27" September, 2018, 26" December, 2018 and 20" February, 2019.

Information of attendance at the board meetings and the last annual general meeting is given below:

Name of the Director No. of Boardt me::,:ngs held during Attendance of Meetings during 2018-19
Sk Board Meetings Last AGM
Shri K Beji George IRTS 0 N.A N.A
Dr. R K Vats, IAS* 5) 5 Yes
Smt Vijaya Srivastava IAS* & 2 Yes
Ms. Preeti Pant, ICAS* 5 4 Yes
Shri. Arun Singhal, IAS* 2 2 N.A
Dr. Dharmendra S Gangwar IAS 0 N.A N.A
Dr. Mandeep K Bhandari IAS 0 N.A N.A
Shri E A Subramanian 5 Yes
Shri T. Rajasekar 5 Yes
Dr. Geeta Sharma & Yes

* The Director has ceased from the Company. For the details of cessation refer SI No. 23.1
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3. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Ministry of Health & Family Welfare (MoHFW), Government of India appoints Chairman & Managing
Director and the other Functional Directors after the due process of selection is completed by Public
Enterprises Selection Board. The remuneration and terms and conditions of their directorship are
decided by Department of Public Enterprises. The Chairman & Managing Director and the Functional
Directors are appointed for a period of five years or till the date of their superannuation or until further
orders, whichever is earlier.

Non-official part-time Independent Directors are also appointed by the Ministry of Health & Family
Welfare, Government of India for a period of three years and are paid a sitting fee of Rs.10,000/- for
attending each meeting of the Board and the Board appointed Sub Committees.

4. APPOINTMENT OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Appointment
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, which have come into force from 1st April,
2014 the Board of directors has appointed the following Directors/Executives as the Key Managerial
Personnel (KMPs) of the Company on their existing terms & conditions of appointment, including
remuneration:

1. Shri K Beji George IRTS - Chairman & Managing Director

2. Shri E A Subramanian - Director (Technical &Operation)

3. Shri T Rajasekar - Director(Marketing)

4. Dr. Geeta Sharma - Director(Finance)

5. Shri Santhosh Cherian - Chief Financial Officer & Vice-President (Finance)

6. Shri Jaikrishnan AR - Company Secretary & Associate Vice-President (CAS)

5. COMPANY POLICIES
Policy on dealing with Related Party transactions:

The Company strictly follows all relevant provisions in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 on dealing with Related Party transactions.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy:

HLL being a Government Company, the power to appoint Directors and to fix their remuneration
vests with Government of India. The Company is governed under DPE Guidelines regarding the
Remuneration Policies of Directors. The Company had complied with the relevant guidelines prescribed
by the Department of Public Enterprises in this regard.

6. BOARD CHARTER

As Trustees of the Company, the Board ensures that the Company has clear goals and policies for
achievement which are in alignment with the Vision and Mission of the Company. The Board provides
strategic directions, reviews corporate performance, authorizes and monitors strategic decisions,
ensures regulatory compliances and safeguards interest of stakeholders. The Board of Directors
adhere to the Board Charter adopted by the Board of Directors, which clearly sets out the role, structure,
responsibilities and operation of Company’s Board of Directors and its delegation of authority.

7. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

The Board of Directors of your Company has laid down a Code of Conduct and Ethics for the Board
Members and Senior Management of the Company. All Board Members and Senior Management
personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct during the year 2018-19. A declaration
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to this effect signed by the Chairman & Managing Director is provided below.

To the Stakeholders of HLL Lifecare Limited
Sub: Compliance with Code of Conduct and Ethics

| hereby declare that all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the
Code of Conduct as adopted by the Board of Directors.

Sd/-
K Beji George IRTS
Chairman and Managing Director

5% September, 2019
Thiruvananthapuram

8. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING

Mr. Aradhana John IAS who was the only Independent Director on the Board of HLL has resigned on
17.17.2018 Accordingly, it was not possible to hold Independent Director’s meeting.

9. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company has complied with the Secretarial Standards on meeting of the Board of Directors (SS-1)
and Secretarial Standards on General Meeting (SS-2) that prescribes a set of principles for convening and
conducting the Meetings of the Board of Directors, meetings of Committees, General Meetings and such
other matters related there to.

10.DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The Company has prepared the financial statements for the year 2018-19 in accordance with the Ind AS
34.

11. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been
constituted to focus on specific areas and make informed decisions within the authority delegated. As a
part of good governance practice, the Committees of the Company are constituted with the formal approval
of the Board and appointment of members and fixing of terms of reference/role of the Committees done
by the Board of Directors. The Committees also make specific recommendations to the Board on various
matters whenever required. All observations, recommendations and decisions of the Committees are
placed before the Board for information or for approval.

The Company has currently established following committees, namely:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. CSR & SD Committee

4. Strategy Formulation & Investment Committee

11.1 Audit Committee

Audit Committee at the Board level is one of the main pillars of Corporate Governance mechanism of
the Company. Audit Committee aims to enhance the confidence in the integrity of Company’s financial
reporting, Internal control processes and act as a link between the Auditors and Board of Directors.
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Consequent to resignation of Ms. Aradhana Johri IAS who was the only Independent Director on the

Board of HLL, the Audit committee is presently not functional. HLL has informed the vacancy the Ministry

of Health & Family Welfare [MoHFW], Government of India about the vacancies of Independent Directors

on a timely manner. The Company will reconstitute the Audit committee by inducting Independent Director
as and when they are appointed by the Government.

11.1. Audit Committee reviews the following matters:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee includes:

i)

i)

i)
iv)
v)
vi)

vii)

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
company;

Review and monitor the auditor’'s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, where it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

viii) and Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

ix)

X)

xi)

xii)

Annual

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

Recommending to the Board the fixation of audit fees.

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors.

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in
the Board’s report in terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013;

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e. Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;
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xiii.
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xiii)

Xiv)

xvi)

xvii)

xviii)

Xix)

xX)
xxi)

xXii)

xxiii)

XXiv)

XXV)

xxvi)

Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval.

Reviewing, with the management, performance of internal auditors and adequacy of the internal
control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure,
coverage and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors and / or auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors/agencies into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism.
To review the follow up action on the audit observations of the C& A G audit.

To review the follow up action taken on the recommendations of Committee on Public Undertakings
(COPU) of the Parliament.

Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor, internal auditor and
the Board of Directors.

Review all related party transactions in the Company. For this purpose, the Audit Committee may
designate a member who shall be responsible for reviewing related party transactions.

Review with the independent auditor the co-ordination of audit efforts to assure completeness of
coverage, reduction of redundant efforts, and the effective use of all audit resources.

Consider and review the following with the independent audit or and the management:

The adequacy of internal controls including computerized information system controls and
security, and

Related findings and recommendations of the independent auditor and internal auditor, together
with the management responses.

xxvii) Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and the independent

auditor:
Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit recommendations

Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any restrictions on the scope of activities

or access to required information.

xxviii) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
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11.1.2 Meetings and Attendance

During the year under review, the Audit committee was not functional due to non-availability of Independent
Directors. Accordingly, no meetings were held during the financial year 2018-19.

11.2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The scope and terms of reference of the Committee was enlarged by including the matters specified in
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Consequent to resignation of Ms. Aradhana Johri IAS who was the only Independent Director on the Board
of HLL, the Nomination & Remuneration committee is presently not functional. HLL has informed the
vacancy the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare [MoHFW], Government of India about the vacancies of
Independent Directors on a timely manner. The Company will reconstitute the Nomination & Remuneration

committee by inducting Independent Director as and when they are appointed by the Government.
11.2.2 Meetings and Attendance

During the year under review, the Nomination & Remuneration committee was not functional due to non-
availability of Independent Directors. Accordingly, no meetings were held during the financial year 2018-
19.

11.3 Corporate Social Responsibility & Sustainable Development Committee

Consequent to resignation of Ms. Aradhana Johri IAS who was the only Independent Director on the
Board of HLL, the Corporate Social Responsibility & Sustainable Development committee is presently not
functional. HLL has informed the vacancy the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare [MoHFW], Government
of India about the vacancies of Independent Directors on a timely manner. The Company will reconstitute
the Corporate Social Responsibility & Sustainable Development committee by inducting Independent
Director as and when they are appointed by the Government.

11.3.1 Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee are as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The
following are the scope/terms of reference of the CSR & SD Committee:

a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company.

b) Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the above activities
¢) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time.
11.3.2 Meetings and Attendance

During the year under review, the CSR committee was not functional due to non-availability of Independent
Directors. Accordingly, no meetings were held during the financial year 2018-19.

1.4  Strategy Formulation and Investment Committee

11.4.1 Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the Committee includes the following
i) Develop long-term strategies and policies for the company.
i) Assessment of HLL's internal and external business environment.

iiii) Develop a strategic management process for achieving company’s annual business targets.
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iv) Assess and approve for implementation projects that are supportive of goals and plans of HLL as
outlined in the Vision 2020 Plan.

V) Plan periodic senior leadership meetings with a strategic agenda.
vi) Provide guidance for effective functioning of the strategic management department in the Company.

vii)  Assist the Board of directors in monitoring and evaluation of projects by identifying implementation
problems or outstanding performance through project exception reports.

viii)  Monitor and evaluate financial and physical performance of all projects.
ix) Recommend investment / project proposals to the Board.

During the year under report, no meetings were held.

12. INFORMATION TO BE PLACED BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has complete access to any information within the Company. The information inter alia, regularly
supplied to the Board includes:

a) Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates
b) Annual Accounts, Directors’ Report, etc.

c) Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the Board including minutes
of Subsidiary Company and Joint-venture Company.

d) Major Investments, formation of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures, Strategic Alliances,etc.
e) Award of large Contracts.

f) Disclosure of Interest by Directors about directorship and committee positions occupied by
them in other Companies.

g) Monthly Report on Commercial Status of the Company.
h) Report on the status of various on going projects / scheme and Budget Utilization.

i) Any significant development in Human Resources/Industrial Relations front like signing of
wage agreement,etc.

j)  Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders’ service
such as non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc.

k) Other materially important information.
13. POST MEETING FOLLOW-UP SYSTEM:

The Governance process in the Company include an effective post-meeting follow-up, review and reporting
process for action taken/pending on decisions of the Board and the Board Committee(s).

14. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

HLL is not listed at any Stock Exchange in India or abroad. The entire paid up equity share capital of the
Company is held by the President of India and his nominees.
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15. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

The Date, Time and Venue of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company is as follows

Whether Special
AGM Financial Year Date Time Venue Resolution(s) Passed
or Not
50" 2015-2016 23d Sept. 2016 3.00 p.m New Delhi No
51°t 2016-2017 28th sept. 2017 11.00 a.m. New Delhi No
52nd 2017-2018 27" Sept. 2018 11.00 a.m. New Delhi No
Date, Time and Venue of 53“Annual General Meeting of the Company
Date Time Venue

30t September, 2019 3.00 p.m New Delhi

16. DISCLOSURES:

. o Details of transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, associates, key managerial
personnel during the year 2018-19 are given as Note No. 2.34 to the Annual Accounts for the year
ended 31 March, 2019. These transactions do not have any potential conflict with the interests of the
Company at large. All transactions with the related parties were in the ordinary course of business
and at arm’s length price.

e There were no cases of non-compliance by the Company and penalties, strictures imposed on the
Company by any statutory authority on any statutory payment requirements.

o Presidential directives issued by the Central government in respect of Official Language
Implementation have been complied with during the year and also in the last three years in the
Company.

e The Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards notified by the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 while preparing the Financial Statements.

e There were no items of expenditure debited in books of accounts, which are not for the purposes of
the business.

e The Company has adequately insured all its assets and also the various business risks connected
with the business of the Company and that it has duly paid insurance premium.

e The Company has adopted Foreign Exchange & Risk Management Policy to protect Rupee value of
Foreign currency cash flows of the Company from adverse impact of fluctuations in exchange rates
and interest rates.

e The Company has adopted Whistle Blower policy and it is affirmed that no person has been denied
access to the Audit Committee in respect of reporting of suspected violations.

17. GENERAL INFORMATION
17.1 Training of Directors:

The Company has adopted Guidelines on Corporate Governance May 2010 issued by Department of
Public Enterprise. Based on the DPE guidelines the company has adopted Training policy for Board
members.
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17.2 Means of Communication:

A
Y #  HLL Lifecare Limited
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Timely disclosure of relevant and reliable information is at the core of good Corporate Governance practice.
Toward this end your Company has taken following initiatives.

Annual Audited Financial Statements

News Releases

Website

Annual Report

The Company publishes its annual audited statement of accounts in the official
website: www.lifecarehll.com

All updates on Company’s development and changes are published through
Company’s Monthly photo newsletter, monthly bulletin and quarterly magazine
and are also displayed on the Company’s website www.lifecarehll.com

The Company’s Corporate Website www.lifecarehll.com provides comprehensive
information about the products, business segments, upcoming projects etc. The
company videos are displayed through webinar in the website and also through
the YouTube channel www.youtube.com/channelHLL

The Annual Report of the Company is circulated to the shareholders, Ministry of
Health & Family Welfare, Comptroller and Auditor General of India and all others
entitled thereto like Statutory Auditors etc.

17.3 Plant Locations

Manufacturing

Contraceptives

Hospital Products

Contraceptives

Contraceptives
Pharma and personal hygiene Prod-
ucts

Hospital Products

Pharma Products

Contraceptives

Ayurveda &Unani products

Plant Name and Location

Peroorkada Factory,

Thiruvananthapuram (PFT), Kerala

Akkulam Factory,
Thiruvananthapuram (AFT),
Kerala

Kakkanad Factory Kochi, (KFC),
Kerala

Kanagala Factory,

Belgaum, (KFB) Karnataka

Manesar Factory, Gurgaon,
(MFG),Haryana

Sanver Road Factory, Indore,
Madhya Pradesh (PFI)

Irapuram Factory, Cochin, (IFC),
Kerala

Haridwar Factory,
Uttarakhand

Address

HLL LifecarelLtd

Peroorkada Factory, Peroorkada
Thiruvananthapuram - 695005
HLL LifecareLtd

Akkulam Factory, Akkulam,
Thiruvananthapuram - 695017

HLL Lifecare Ltd

Cochin Special Economic Zone
Division, Plot No:16A/1, Kakkanadu,
Cochin -682037

HLL Lifecare Ltd

Kanagala Factory, Belgaum,
Karnataka - 591225

HLL Lifecare Ltd

Manesar Unit, Plot No: 71 Sector 7,
Gurgaon, Haryana -122050

HLL Lifecare Ltd,

Sector-E, Sanver Road Industrial Area,
Indore - Madhya Pradesh

HLL LifecareLtd

Re-Sy.No156/3,

Block No.29 Rubber Park, Valayanchi-
rangara Irapuram,Cochin-683 556
Kharsa No. 37, Gram Makhanpur,
Bhagwanpur Tehsil, Haridwar District,
Uttarakhand — 247 661
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. INDUSTRY ANALYSIS
1.1 Healthcare Industry-Outlook

In recent years the healthcare industry in India has grown exponentially. It has been growing at a rapid pace
owing to the increased investment and expenditure from public as well as private investors. At present,
the rising incidences of lifestyle diseases, the rising demand for affordable healthcare, the emergence of
technologies like telemedicine, and the increased role of government in healthcare investment space are
the major driving factors in Indian healthcare industry. The hospital industry in India stood at Rs 4 trillion
(US$ 61.79 billion) in FY17 and is expected to reach Rs 8.6 trillion (US$ 132.84 billion) by FY22.

The Union Budget outlay under Health & Family Welfare for the year 2019-20 is INR 62,659.12 crore. The
Government of India approved the continuation of National Health Mission with a budget of Rs 31,745
crore (US$ 4.40 billion) under the Union Budget 2019-20. The Ayushman Bharat - Pradhan Mantri Jan
Arogya Yojana (PMJAY), the largest government funded healthcare program targeting more than 500
million beneficiaries, was allocated Rs 6,400 core (US$ 887.04 million), under the Union Budget 2019-20.

The budget allocation for the year 2019-20 is around 19% higher than the previous year. Rs 249.96 crore
has been allocated for setting up Ayushman Bharat Health and Wellness Centres under the National Urban
Health Mission to provide comprehensive primary care close to the community, while Rs 1,349.97 crore
has been earmarked for setting up health and wellness centres under the National Rural Health Mission.

1.2 Contraceptives:

The global contraceptive market is experiencing a robust growth at a favourable CAGR. Every year, a
greater number of people undergoing contraceptive sterilization can be observed. Also, there is a high
demand of male condoms due to their affordability, availability and higher efficiency to prevent pregnancy
and exposure to sexually transmitted diseases (STDs).Female contraception drug products are major
boosters for the growth of the global contraceptive market. There is a continually growing population of
females using hormonal contraception. Oral pills and IUDs are the widely used methods of contraception
among females. The global female contraception drug market would continue to move forward with a
healthy growth rate in future.

1.3 Pharmaceuticals:

India is the largest provider of generic drugs globally. Indian pharmaceutical sector industry supplies over
50 per cent of global demand for various vaccines, 40 per cent of generic demand in the US and 25 per
cent of all medicine in UK. Medicine spending in India is projected to grow 9-12 per cent over the next
five years, ie. from 2019-2023 leading India to become one of the top 10 countries in terms of medicine
spending.

India enjoys an important position in the global pharmaceuticals sector. The country also has a large pool
of scientists and engineers who have the potential to steer the industry ahead to an even higher level.
Presently over 80 per cent of the antiretroviral drugs used globally to combat AIDS (Acquired Immune
Deficiency Syndrome) are supplied by Indian pharmaceutical firms.

Indian pharmaceutical sector is expected to grow at a CAGR of 15 per cent in the near future and medical
device market expected to grow $50 billion by 2025.
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1.4 Hospital Products- Blood Bags:

The global disposable blood bag market is projected to reach INR 3997.13 Crores by 2023, growing
at a CAGR of 11.0%. The volume of disposable blood bag market was 27.5 Crore units in 2016 and is
expected to reach by 55.6 Crore units by 2023, registering a CAGR of 10.5%.

Surge in incidence of accidents and number of surgical procedures carried out globally fuels the growth of
disposable blood bag market. Moreover, rise in tender-based buying practices of hospitals is anticipated to
propel the demand for disposable blood bags. Huge untapped market potential in the emerging countries,
such as China and India, is expected to provide favourable opportunities to the market players. The
collection bag segment is anticipated to continue to lead the market throughout the analysis period, owing
to increase in the number blood donations. In addition, high demand for blood and blood products in the
developing regions due to increased utilization of healthcare services boosts the market growth

1.5 Diagnostic Services:

India is a land full of opportunities for players in the diagnostic service industry. The country has become
one of the major destinations for various diagnostic services. By 2021, the elderly population will reach 143
million. Hence, the growing geriatric population is expected to augment the demand for diagnostic imaging
equipment. The growing expenditure in the healthcare sector, technological advancements coupled with
expanded government initiatives across the globe and spending on healthcare services are some of
the other growth factors for the diagnostic imaging equipment market.The diagnostic services market in
India is expected to continue growing at 27.5% during the period 2019-2023 .The global point-of-care
diagnostics market is projected to reach INR 2,62,777 Crores (2,627.77 Billion) by 2022 at a CAGR
of 10%.High prevalence of diabetes and other infectious diseases is the major factor driving the India
diagnostic laboratories market. Rising penetration of medical insurance in India has also been observed
as one of the major driver for the India diagnostic laboratories market as financial constraint is considered
to be the primary hurdle for seeking medical treatment as claimed by 55% of the rural population and 60%
of the urban population in India.

1.6 Retail Pharmacy:

The Retail Pharmacy market is expected to register a positive CAGR of 8.6% in terms of revenue during
the forecast period FY’2019-FY’2025. Pharmacy Retail Market in India is expected to reach a value of
INR 2.9 billion by 2022. India pharmacy retail market is at a mature stage. The pharmacy retail market in
the India has witnessed a growth in recent years on account of rising demand for OTC drugs and private
label products fuelled by extensive advertisement by various organizations. India pharmacy retail industry
revenue has grown at a positive CAGR during the period FY’2013-FY’2019. The organized pharmaceutical
retail market size is estimated to be Rs.2600 crores. This growth was supported by rise in number of
chronic diseases, low prices of generic drugs, rise in number of hospital based pharmacies, growth in OTC
segment, urbanization and growth of middle class population.
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3. w=aet e

T faed oY o TRIY el i i & ol fafmiar ud faqureral &1 = fafa srmarer s, wmt sarg 3R

T el I T F e e |

Ty 2018 - 19 & IR TIUATE o 0T SrRisherdl i Feter e 3t S &:
i . . werfm  fRfE A v e G E

&l (a1 ) (s) (fret )

1 %em TUCAET 3ET 1892.00 818.66 439 1,846.52
2 =TS T T 3T 12.50 10.07 81% 7.39
3w N T 6.00 0.61 10% 131
4 HR 2 T 3T 5.50 2.87 52% 238
5 fediged o @ o % 98.66 42.85 43% 4378
6  =m-fedmes ot @ @ B 30.00 65.97 221% 4137
7 Y Aufe T 3T 392.00 198.11 51% 251.93
8 IR 3% fhed T 3T_T 26.00 12.93 50% 12.55

4. v fauu UEe IR Iueteat
AfET g waw - fasia aw 2018-19 & IR 7= wwA
o ofET Wi, R, AUk o1 Ush o i qU YT 3R —UfehT 3R FHeshl (TR 3R AR - 5.352 @

o) o a1 HecaThiEl el § 329 Whell § Seehdl SHrsHH |ied e Hideh &6 Wesl Teud HRIwT H ar]
A & (o0 | TH 3R % 3T U7 SR 0 T % 6 WA |

5 et o foTu witeieRaT ST B1E et UK, FaRiett (qoa 25 wrg) | AfehT S e o e iR foxt o 2019-
20 § 311 15 Tpell i ThAA-317 FI o fqu 396 | TH 3R o 1€ A hiomhioed fames (7 & wel) &
T T 3 g |

o T el YT T SEehal U8T SheT SR et Afeh e TeiiAt sl Sgrar 37 3R dfferrg | faaen/

Rl S 3% faeRor 99er 9rieRT (e 800+ ) & Arem | Afedr AferT afem weiiy, ddimRex 3R AfehT i
T I KT S 3T T TA & T UF 3N | 3 AT 3R e foue sl v 3w “fafeg gieer” #
Thet 3T T H &THAT|

A o HiEeT Taehrd FH = Taueuet i TEFRER AR o T2 Ak Wt 3mgia & arermen, = | (e 18-
T 19) § et & 250 Thell | A G Wesdl Yae AN IE HA D G & &1 GHRICHS Uisha o
YR W o ug efeerg & @ 7 fgcla =wor &

5. sifew R sfgmar

SEH: TIUeTe ZadE & ol PR AR WWHRT TS W TcAh FR €1 TRHR I SET-T fashar s
1 ! fRafd Teueiuer 1 SRRMT 3R HEAIG FI6! 9 F qTiad i |

YT AISHT : AT AT 3R] SR FAT3T i TR ek 3R AR HIiehe IR i T&H & 31 AT et
FRT 3 @A & I A hl ASHT S &, ST Teaq Sy sraiaar & &9 €1
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3. PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE

HLL is a leading manufacturer and marketer of a range of contraceptive products around the globe. It also
provides a variety of hospital products, pharma products and healthcare delivery services.

Areview of HLL's manufacturing activities during 2018-19 is given below:

Quantity . Quantity

'\?(I)' Product Unit gr:ta:(l:e}td Manufactured u ﬁﬁ:zirigcr:t{o/ ) Manufactured

: pacity (Current year) °/ (Previous Year)
1 Condoms Mpcs 1892.00 818.66 43% 1,846.52
2 Blood Bags Mpcs 12.50 10.07 81% 7.39
8 Suture L. Doz 6.00 0.61 10% 1.31
4 Copper - T Mpcs 5.50 2.87 52% 2.38
5 Sterioidal OCP M. Cycles 98.66 42.85 43% 43.78

Non-Steroidal OCP 0

6 (Saheli) M. Tabs 30.00 65.97 221% 41.37
7 Sanitary Napkin Mpcs 392.00 198.11 51% 251.93
8 Diagnostic Test Kits Mpcs 26.00 12.93 50% 12.55

4. MAJOR MARKETING INITIATIVES AND ACHIEVEMENTS
Vending Business Division — Key initiatives during FY 2018 - 19:

e Collaboration with MRPL under CSR to implement Comprehensive Menstrual Hygiene Management
program including supply of Vending machines, Incinerators, One year free supply of napkins and
Awareness Program in 329 schools in two aspirational districts of Karnataka (Raichur and Yadgir
- Value Rs 352 Lac).

e MoU with Northern Coalfields Limited (NCL) under their CSR for supply of Napkins to Adolescent
Girls in ShashikiyaKanya High School, Panjreh,Singrauli (Value Rs 25 Lac) for 5 years and potential
to scale-up to another 15 schools in FY 2019-20.

e MoU with IOCL for creating Awareness on Personal Hygiene Management and promote Sanitary
Napkin Vending Machines, Incinerators and Napkins through their distribution channel partners
(nearly 800+) like Distributors / Dealers in Tamilnadu. Potential to scale-up this “Business model”
to other states and Oil Marketing Companies.

e Kerala State Women Development Corporation, has advised HLL to undertake Menstrual Hygiene
Management campaign in 250 Schools across Kerala in Phase | (Dec 18 — Mar 19), in addition
to supply of Incinerators and “SHE PAD” napkins. Based on the positive feedback KSWDC has
awarded HLL 150 schools in Phase I

5. RISKS AND CONCERNS

e Risk: HLL is highly dependent on Government and Government organi